
 

10 September 2012 Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday, 10 September 2012, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown  
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

10 September 2012 Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 23 August Mid-Year Retreat [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 27 August 2012 Short Regular Meeting 
c) 27 August 2012 Work Session 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-65, An Amendment to the FY 2012-2013 

Recreation Department Budget to Include Donations for Babe Ruth Softball Tournament 
Expenses, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #11. (CAF 12-114)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
 Ordinance 12-65 

 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-68, FY12-13 Budget Amendment #10 

Appropriating Tap Fee from Vance County for Phases 2A and 2B to Rate Stabilization. (CAF 
12-116)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
 Ordinance 12-68 

 
  c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-79, Providing for the Disposition of Certain 

Jointly Held Properties by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 1) 434 Whitten 
Avenue; 2) 1029 North Garnett Street; and 3) 514 High Street.  (CAF 12-121) [See Notebook 
Tab 4] 

 
 Resolution 12-79 

 
  d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-75, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to 

Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 301 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and 
Improve the Property.  (CAF 12-A-106)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

 
 Resolution 12-75 

 
  e ) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-76, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to 

Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 309 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and 
Improve the Property.  (CAF 12-A-107)[See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
 Resolution 12-76 



 

10 September 2012 Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

  f)  Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-77, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to 
Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 315 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and 
Improve the Property.  (CAF 12-A-108)[See Notebook Tab 7] 

 
 Resolution 12-77 

 
  g) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-78, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to 

Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 318 Rowland Street to Secure the Structure and 
Improve the Property.  (CAF 12-A-109)[See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
 Resolution 12-78 

 
  h) Consideration of FY 13 Airport Funding.  [See Notebook Tab 9] 
  
X. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by City 
Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of business by 
the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in the form listed.  If 
discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in question will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the revised consent agenda has been 
approved.  
 

 a)   Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-64, Approving the Submission of the Application 
of an Urban Progress Zone Designation.  (CAF 12-93)  [See Notebook Tab 10] 

 
  ●  Resolution 12-64 
 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-71, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with 

Environmental Engineering & Technology (EE&T) for Engineering/Inspection Services in 
Conjunction with a State Revolving Fund Loan for the High Service Pump Replacement and 
New Warren County Meter Vault for the Regional Water System.  (CAF 12-A-88)  [See 
Notebook Tab 11] 

 
  ●  Resolution 12-71 
 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-05, Consideration of Declaring the Old First 

National Bank Building on Garnett Street as Surplus Property and Authorizing the Solicitation 
of Proposals from Realtors to Market and Sell said Building.  (CAF 12-18)  [See Notebook 
Tab 12] 

 
  ●  Resolution 12-05 
 
 d) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-62, Approving Demolition of 587 Beckford 

Drive.   (CAF 12-110) [See Notebook Tab 13] 
 
  ●  Ordinance 12-62 



 

10 September 2012 Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 e) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-63, Approving Demolition of 707 Marshall 

Street.  (CAF 12-111) [See Notebook Tab 14]   
 
  ●  Ordinance 12-63 
 
 f) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-64, Approving Demolition of 710 Marshall 

Street.  (CAF 12-112) [See Notebook Tab 15] 
 
  ●  Ordinance 12-64 
 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 
 

XII. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  

i. Declaration of Surplus Property [See Notebook Tab 16] 
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Notes and Schedule Update [See Notebook Tab 17] 
ii. Various Departmental Reports  

 Henderson Fire Department 
 Henderson-Vance County 911 

 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Team Building Retreat--DRAFT 
Aycock Recreation Center 

23 January 2012 

 
 
PRESENT & STAFF PRESENT: 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Vernon Brown, Garry D. Daeke, George 
M. Daye. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, 
Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown, Fire Chief Danny 
Wilkerson, Planning Director Erris Dunston, Police Chief Keith Sidwell, Finance Director Kathy 
Brafford, Kerr Lake Regional Facility Water Director Christy Lipscomb, Henderson Water 
Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams, and Parks 
& Recreation Director Alan Gill  
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member D. Michael Rainey. 
 
WELCOME 
 
Mayor O’Geary opened the Retreat at 8:20 a.m. by welcoming everyone and specifically 
welcomed back Becky Veazey to whom he turned the meeting over to with no further ado. 
 
INTRODUCTIONS, REVIEW AND AGREE ON AGENDA, ROLE OF FACILITATOR, 
GROUND RULES.   
 
Ms. Veazey said she was glad to be back and began the session by reviewing the ground rules 
which were: 1) Value (i.e., valid information, internal commitment and free, informed choice) 
and 2) Rule (i.e., share relevant information, test for inferences & assumptions, provide reasons 
for statement).  She then reviewed her role.   
 
With no questions, she then asked if anyone would like to make any adjustments to the agenda.  
There were no changes. 
  



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND EXPECTATIONS 
 
 
Ms. Veazey reminded Council that the Roles, Responsibilities and Expectations have been in 
place for five years and said it is important to review them periodically.  She then asked 
Councilmembers to comment on a specific point(s) they felt were most important to them as 
listed under each section of these expectations.  Ms. Veazey then asked for a Councilmember to 
begin the process by commenting on what he/she found most important under the Council’s 
Needs and Expectations of Other Council Members.   
 
Council’s Needs and Expectations of Other Council Members 
 
Councilmember Daeke began the process by saying he felt being a good listener is important, 
whether you agreed or not.  Councilmember Peace-Jenkins felt being open minded is important 
as it often leads to other avenues, and less stiff-necked, stubborn attitudes.  Councilmember Daye 
felt not wanting glory is important as Council works in one accord to be informed and up-to-
date.  Councilmember Inscoe felt investigating the facts, or as he said “the devil is in the details,” 
is important for knowing as much information as possible to make an informed decision and   
Councilmember Coffey felt being approachable is important so citizens feel they are being 
heard.  Councilmember Brown felt focusing on what is best for the City is most important and 
Council needs to consider the long-term issues.  Mayor O’Geary said working together so 
citizens know decisions are made by the entire Council is important. 
 
With no further comments on this segment, Ms. Veazey moved the focus to the next section 
which is…  
 
City Council’s Needs and Expectations of Mayor 
 
Councilmember Inscoe said he felt the Mayor is the best he can be for both citizens and Council, 
He said Mayor O’Geary represents all people and he is proud to serve under the Mayor.  
Councilmember Daye said the Mayor does what he can for ALL people.  Councilmember Peace-
Jenkins sees the Mayor as the cheerleader and said the Mayor is a great cheerleader.  
Councilmember Coffey said the Mayor shares his thoughts but is not forceful in what he shares.  
Councilmember Brown said he appreciates the Mayor’s longevity and the pep in his step. 
 
Ms. Veazey then directed Council to the third section of the Roles, Responsibilities and 
Expectations by asking what attributes they see as most important. 
 
City Council’s and Mayor’s Needs and Expectations of City Manager  
 
Mayor O’Geary said communication is most important and stated the City Manager does this 
well.  Councilmember Daeke said confidence in staff is important and said the City Manager 
hires, trains and supports the staff.  Councilmember Peace-Jenkins said taking time to listen is 
important and finds the City Manager makes everyone feel important.  Councilmember Daye 



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 3 of 7 
 

said having an open door; being a good listener is important.  Councilmember Coffey said being 
a good listener and handling difficult situations calmly is important.  She said the City Manager 
helps Council understand the unknown.  Councilmember Inscoe felt a positive approach and 
long-term vision is important.  He sees the Manager’s job as guiding Council with seeing long-
term needs and helping Council make the right decisions.  He gave the example of the City 
Manager guiding Council in seeing the right decisions with expanding the regional water system 
which meant biting the bullet to not continue to put band aids on a decades old wastewater plant.  
Mr. Inscoe said as Council plans for the future there will be negative publicity but if this Council 
does not build today for the future, there will not be a successful future.  Councilmember Brown 
felt a long-term vision is important.  Mr. Brown likes people who make tough positive decisions 
and gave the City Manager permission to be open with Council Members if they are not living 
up to expectations.  He asked who put this statement in the agreement and City Manager Griffin 
said it was a Council decision.  Mr. Brown felt this was a strong, important part.  Mayor O’Geary 
felt confidence in staff is important along with being active in the community.  The Mayor said he 
has not seen anyone that has such full confident in the staff 
 
At this point, Councilmember Inscoe recognized the Department Heads for their part with the 
pre-planning and the expectations for the City’s future.  Specifically he thanked the Police Chief 
for his efforts in having new legislation passed regarding criminals; he highlighted the Fire 
Chief’s creativity in obtaining resources for the department; Christy Lipscomb for her work at 
Regional Water; Tom Spain at the wastewater plant; he said Kathy Brafford should be wearing 
green for her improvements in the Finance department with the computer-based system to bring 
the department into the 21st Century and said others like Erris Dunston and Frank Frazier do a 
magnificent job.  Mr. Inscoe did not want to take credit away from the manager but said all the 
staff is important.  
 
City Manager Griffin thanked Mr. Inscoe for his comments and wholeheartedly echoded his 
comments.  Mr. Griffin said before moving on he wanted to say that anything that has been done 
has been done as a result of the men and women around this table.  He said the staff is the one in 
the trenches and then thanked Mr. Inscoe for recognizing them and said everyone working 
together makes a great support team.  Councilmember Daye agreed and Mayor O’Geary said the 
current staff is the “best of the best.” 
 
With no other comments, Ms. Veazey moved the discussion to the next section of the 
Responsibilities. 
 
City Manager’s Needs and Expectations of Mayor and City Council 
 
City Manager Griffin mentioned sharing concerns and working together was most important and 
stressed discussing concerns prior to meetings led to understanding and less division during 
meetings.  He also said sharing bad news was just as important as sharing the good news.  
Councilmember Coffey felt approachable (open-minded/open door policy) is important. 
Councilmember Brown said it is important not to forget the vows taken and the commitment to 
the community.   
  



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Ms. Veazey asked if Council wanted to add, remove or reword any portion of the roles.  All the 
Councilmembers present were in agreement that no changes were needed and affirmed the Roles, 
Responsibilities and Expectations Agreement as approved at the January 2012 Strategic Planning 
Retreat. 
 
City Manager Griffin thanked Ms. Veazey for introducing the Roles, Responsibilities and 
Expectations concept to the group as it has added value and cohesiveness to the group. 
 
A short break was taken at this time. 
 
TEAM BUILDING USING MBTI (MEYERS BRIGGS TYPE INDICATOR) 
 
Following the break Ms. Veazey gave a short Meyers Briggs overview and asked Council and 
Department Heads to participate in several group exercises meant to help understand the 
differences in personality types.  The first exercise was to divide the introverts into one group 
and the extroverts into another group ---both groups were to work together in describing where 
and how they would like to complete an important project.  After a brief time the groups 
presented their preferences.  As different groupings completed different exercises, it was evident 
different personality types work/respond differently.  The exercises were successful and enjoyed 
by all.  Ms. Veazey used these exercises to emphasize we need each other to function efficiently 
and effectively.  A suggestion was made to use real job problems for this exercise at the next 
retreat. 
 
At this time Ms. Veazey turned the meeting over to City Manager Griffin. 
 
STRATEGIC PLANNING UPDATE 
   
Mr. Griffin reminded everyone that this mid-year retreat was established during the January 
Strategic Retreat in anticipation of the possibility of several new Councilmembers.  He reviewed 
the purpose of the Key Strategic Objectives (KSO’s) and Action Plans (APs), and said no 
specific individual departmental presentations were planned; however, staff was present to 
respond to any questions Councilmembers might ask.  He then summarized the status of each 
KSO/AP from 2009 to present explaining why/how a specific project was completed, on-going, 
stalled, or removed.  Mr. Griffin then opened the floor to discuss any item on the Plan. 
 
Councilmember Inscoe felt AP1-1, Implementing Process Improvement needed to be refined to 
establish a process for evaluation.  Mr. Griffin said processes are reviewed periodically with 
changes being made as necessary. 
 
Developing Annexation Plan (AP3-7) under KSO 3 (Economic Development) was briefly 
discussed and Mr. Griffin said it would be reviewed carefully as the State recently imposed new 
laws regarding this issue. 
 
A brief discussion was held regarding the redundancy between items within KSO 3 and KSO 4.  
Several of these items will be combined. 



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
At this point lunch arrived and the group broke for lunch. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Councilmember Kearney arrived at approximately 11:45 a.m.) 
 
At 12:35 p.m. the group reconvened and the first issue discussed was KSO 5 Reliable 
Infrastructure.  Councilmember Inscoe felt a 5-year CIP for the General Fund will be important 
going forward. Mr. Griffin expressed concern that by requesting such a plan, staff will have 
certain expectations that their needs/requests will be met.  Mr. Inscoe said he understood that but 
felt the plan would help Council during the budget process and saw it as a rolling plan for 
coming years.  Mr. Griffin said McGill & Associates continue to update the existing utility CIP 
Plan and stated although the General Fund has no funds set aside for this, a plan would be 
compiled by department for review at the Strategic Planning meeting in January 2013. 
Councilmember Daeke agreed that a 5-year plan would be helpful. 
 
Councilmember Inscoe said he was disappointed no media were in attendance as he felt the Mid-
Year Report shows the excellent progress the City has made.  He asked the City Manager to 
issue a press release so citizens would know what progress has been made, where the City is 
headed ---a general overview.  Mr. Inscoe also suggested a flyer to let citizens know the costs of 
running the City and/or a State of the City meeting to educate the public.  A discussion about the 
best media methods ensued.  Councilmember Daeke asked about the proper time for a State of 
the City meeting and it was suggested late September/October.   
 
Planning Director Erris Dunston felt media options needed to be reviewed as the traditional 
paper/radio are no longer seen as the main areas to receive news with the “young” generation.  
City Manager Griffin asked Ms. Dunston to form a committee and report back on their findings. 
 
Fire Chief Wilkerson reminded Council that Ward meetings could be useful in “getting the word 
out” and also suggested Community Watch groups.   
 
Councilmember Peace-Jenkins said citizens need to be bombarded for a long time before 
changes are recognized and accepted.   
 
Discussion then turned to one-stop permits.  Councilmember Inscoe said the current process is 
viewed as a stumbling block to many professionals wishing to relocate to the area and many find 
the process tedious.  It was agreed the process needs improvement and the City Manager will 
follow up on possible solutions. Planning Director Dunston was asked to share the current permit 
packet with Councilmembers.  Councilmember Inscoe summarized the discussion by saying 
economic development is the lifeblood of the community and this is one area of frustration 
which turns away businesses. 
 
Before moving on, Facilitator Veazey asked for the consensus of Council on the State of the City 
report. Councilmember Peace-Jenkins felt this was a low priority at this time and 
Councilmember Kearney thought it was a good idea but should be put on the back burner.  It was 
the consensus of Council to put this issue on the back burner for a time.  



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
Councilmember Brown moved the discussion to the issue of sports tourism by asking why this 
has not been developed.  Parks and Recreation Director Alan Gill explained the focus has been 
on completing the trail at Fox Pond Park and also time and funding constraints.  Mr. Brown 
asked about the possibility of fishing tournaments/tennis tournaments/swim meets, etc. to bring 
in funding.  Mr. Gill responded although it is not creating funds, the Rec Center has partnered 
with the YMCA to teach water safety to all 2nd graders in the school system.   
 
Councilmember Coffey inquired about the possibility of teaching lifeguard training.  She felt a 
lot of individuals would like to have this training and asked why a certification class would not 
bring in funding.  Mr. Gill explained the Red Cross teaches this class for a flat fee and if the 
Center charged more, people would normally take the Red Cross class --- also because they are a 
nationally certifying organization but Mr. Gill said he would look into the possibility. 
 
Councilmember Brown asked if the Parks and Recreation Center could partner with the YMCA 
for other events saying it is important to utilize the existing facilities at the Center. 
 
Councilmember Peace-Jenkins asked about why AP1-3a Develop Mandatory Recycling 
Plan/Revenues was removed from the plan.  City Manager Griffin said the City did not have the 
funds to implement mandatory recycling.  He said the cost for recycling bins exceeded $100,000 
and said the issue would be revisited for FY14. 
 
RETREAT CRITIQUE 
 
No other issues were of concern at this time so Ms. Veazey asked if Council was ready to 
critique the Retreat. 
 

Things that went well: 
 Mid-year Retreat was concise and the format went well 
 Enjoyed the exercises 
 Most enjoyable of all the meetings 
 Understanding Meyers Briggs helpful 
 Staff thanked Council for working together 
 
Things that can be improved: 
 Participation/Involvement by Department Heads 
 Mid-Year retreat in future for mid-course correction (on target budget wise) 
 Would like to use Meyers Briggs for real on the job challenges 
 Would like to hear about Department Head jobs 
 Dress Code theme 
 
A short discussion was held regarding the status of the budget.  Mr. Griffin said the Finance 
Department is now working with real time revenue/expenditures which should reduce 
amendments to the budget.  The goal of the Finance Department is to produce a quarterly report. 



Team Building Retreat 
23 August 2012 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Speaking for several departments, Planning Director Dunston said they appreciate Council’s 
openness and willingness to contribute to a solution regarding permits.  Everyone looks forward 
to a resolution. 
 
AJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Veazey thanked Council for allowing her to once again meet and facilitate the meeting and 
adjourned the meeting at approximately 2:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

27 August 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 5 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Regular Short Meeting 

27 August 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Vernon L. Brown and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank 
Frazier, Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Planning 
Director Erris Dunston, Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb, Code 
Compliance Director Corey Williams, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom 
Spain, and Attorney Carolyn Burnett, representing City Attorney John Zollicoffer. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 27 August 2012 Short Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order 
by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone and said he was glad to see so many in attendance. 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda. City Clerk McCrackin 
announced G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3), an attorney-client matter would be added to the Closed 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

27 August 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 5 

Session. Council Member Inscoe moved to accept the adjusted Agenda. Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  City Clerk 
McCrackin asked for approval to amend the 25 June 2012 minutes to include Ordinance 12-41, 
FY Budget Amendment #55, Establishing the Julia Avenue Phase II Project Budget, which was 
approved during the 25 June meeting, along with Resolution 12-40 Authorizing the Acceptance 
of Julia Avenue Phase II CDBG Project – City of Henderson Engineering Agreement and an 
Agreement with Appian Consulting Engineers for the Development of a Public Facilities 
Manual. With that adjustment, Council Member Coffey moved the approval of the following 
minutes as presented: 13 August 2012 Regular Meeting.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Rainey and unanimously approved. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Ordinance 12-41 on 25 June 
2012.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and the ordinance was approved by the 
following vote: YES: Coffey, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye and Kearney.  NO: None.   
ABSTAIN:  Inscoe.   ABSENT: Davis.    It was a failure to note this Ordinance in the 25 June 
minutes and a note has been made in the 25 June minutes of this amendment.) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak on 
agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Supporting the Vance County Comprehensive Transportation Maps Endorsing the One-
Way Pair Concept for Dabney Drive and Corbitt Drive, While Recommending Additional 
Study of Design Details.  (Reference:  CAF 12-A-73; Resolution 12-44) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning Director Erris Dunston to introduce the representative from 
North Carolina Department of Transportation Planning Department (NCDOT) who will update 
Council on the plan.  Ms. Dunston introduced Mr. Scott Walston who is here to present the most 
recent concept and to answer any questions. 
 
Mr. Walston distributed a PowerPoint overview which showed a “needs” list and the sequence of 
events for the next 30 years.  He said there is no promise that this concept will be built and 
stressed several times that this overview is only a concept.  Mr. Walston recommended starting 
the process by approving the concept so preparations are in place when the appropriate time 
comes.  He emphasized the design specifications would be addressed when the concept is 
approved.  Vance County approved this concept on 6 August, and Mr. Walston will be 
presenting the concept to both Middleburg and Kittrell later this year.     



 

 
Minute Book 42 

27 August 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 5 

 
Council Member Inscoe inquired how this concept fits with the widening of South Beckford 
Drive.  City Manager Griffin said an update is scheduled for later in the meeting and offered to 
present the information at this time.  Mr. Inscoe said he would wait. 
 
There was some confusion when Mr. Walston said the plan included the use of the old railroad 
bed.  City Manager clarified the railroad bed was the portion of the concept from Parham Road 
to Beckford Drive.   
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the wording issues from the last meeting had been clarified.  
The City Manager said since this is only a concept the issues were not pertinent at this time. 
 
Mr. Walston concluded by pointing out that at this time there is no funding for the project but it 
is necessary to get this on the table so when funding is available the appropriate steps have been 
taken and then the details and design can be established.   
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 12-44, Supporting the Vance County 
Comprehensive Transportation Maps Endorsing the One-Way Pair Concept for Dabney Drive 
and Corbitt Drive, While Recommending Additional Study of Design Details.  Motion seconded 
by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, and Brown. NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None. 
ABSENT: Daye.  (See Resolution Book 2, p. 337) 
 
Establishing City Council Committee Appointments to the Fireman’s Supplemental 
Retirement Committee and to the Boards and Commissions Committee. (Reference:  CAF 
12-113; Resolution 12-72) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked City Clerk McCrackin to address Council.  Ms. McCrackin said after 
submitting the recommendations for Council appointments in July, it was learned that the 
Fireman’s Supplemental Retirement Committee required two (2) Council Members on that 
committee and a fourth Council Member was needed for the Boards and Commissions 
Committee.  Mayor O’Geary would like approval of his recommendation of Council Member 
Coffey to the Retirement Committee and Council Member Peace-Jenkins to the Boards and 
Commissions Committee.  
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 12-72, Establishing City Council 
Committee Appointments to the Fireman’s Supplemental Retirement Committee and to the 
Boards and Commissions Committee. Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and 
APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, 
and Kearney. NO: None:  ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Daye. (See Resolution Book 3, p 39) 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

27 August 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 5 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk advised no citizen wished to address City Council on a non-agenda item. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem - (No Report) 
b) City Manager - (No Report) 
c) City Attorney - (No Report) 
d) City Clerk McCrackin – Ms. McCrackin reminded Council of the COG Banquet 

September 27th in Warrenton and the Ride-Around scheduled for September 13. 
 
Council Member Daeke reminded everyone of the Franklin Granville Vance Smart Start Ducky 
Derby on September 29th. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins thanked those that came to the Saving Young Black Men Forum. 
 
Before going into Closed Session, Mayor O’Geary asked if there was any other business.  With 
no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed Session 
and stated there would be a report following the session. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Daye arrived at 6:29 p.m.) 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(4) for an Economic Development Matter, G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3), for an Attorney-
Client matter,  and G.S. §143-318.11(a)(6), for Personnel matters.  Motion was seconded by 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins and unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Kearney and unanimously approved.   
 
An Authorizing Resolution by the Henderson City Council in Support of a North Carolina 
Building Restoration and Reuse Grant Program for Economic Development Prospect 12-3; 
ALB Hotels, LLC dba Henderson Hospitality LLC. (Reference:  CAF 12-83, Resolution 12-
74; Ordinance 12-67).  City Manager Griffin announced the Henderson/Vance Economic 
Development Commission is requesting Council to consider approval of an incentive for a 
developer who has purchased the old Ambassador Inn.  This incentive, through the Rural Center 
would provide for 35 jobs at an average salary of $16,945, including health insurance.  The grant 
also required no more than $3,500 from the City.  These dollars are available within the existing 
budget and it was suggested the agreement state these funds be held by the City until such time 
as the project has complied with all grant project requirements.   



 

 
Minute Book 42 

27 August 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 5 

 
Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council as there was no discussion. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 12-74, An Authorizing Resolution by 
the Henderson City Council in Support of a North Carolina Building Restoration and Reuse 
Grant Program for Economic Development Prospect 12-3; ALB Hotels, LLC dba Henderson 
Hospitality LLC. Motion seconded by Council Member Kearney and APPROVED by the 
following vote: YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, and Coffey. 
NO: None:  ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. (See Resolution Book 3, p 43; Ordinance Book 
8, p 485) 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there was any other business.  With no further discussion, Mayor 
O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 

Minute Book 42 
27 August 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 1 of 6 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Work Session 

27 August 2012  

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry Daeke, Vernon L. 
Brown, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, 
Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Planning Director Erris 
Dunston, Code Compliance Director Corey William, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility 
Director Tom Spain and Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 27 August 2012 Work Session of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 7:31 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  No requests were made to 
adjust the Agenda.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council and it was the consensus 
of Council to accept the Agenda as presented.   
 



 

Minute Book 42 
27 August 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 2 of 6 

WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 
Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with Environmental Engineering & Technology 
(EE&T) for Engineering/Inspection Services in Conjunction with a State Revolving Fund 
Loan for the High Service Pump Replacement and New Warren County Meter Vault for 
the Regional Water System.  (Reference: CAF 12-A-88; Resolution 12-71) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to lead this discussion.  Mr. Frazier 
reminded Council that at the last meeting the resolution for the high speed pump replacement 
was approved.  He said this is part of the process and is also part of the 20MGD project.  EE&T 
did the original design and staff requests approval of this contract to take the project to the next 
level.  There was no discussion. 
 
It was the consensus of Council to bring this matter forward to the next regular meeting. 
 
Approving the Submission of the Application of an Urban Progress Zone Designation.  
(Reference:  CAF 12-93; Resolution 12-64) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning Director Erris Dunston and Economic Development 
Commission Director Stuart Litvin to update Council on the Urban Progress Zone Designation.  
Ms. Dunston said this designation is an incentive for businesses to locate in low income areas.  
According to the State program criteria, Henderson qualifies as a Tier 1 County and Ms. Dunston 
said the zones meeting the criteria were identified from the 2010 census.  Ms. Dunston recently 
spoke with State personnel to confirm areas abutting these zones may also be considered as part 
of the low income areas.  There are three zones within Henderson that meet the criteria ---census 
tracts 960500, 960700 and 960900 within the City. 
 
Mr. Litvin first thanked Council for their affirmation of the Rural Grant for Prospect 12-3 and 
went on to explain more about the Tier 1 program.  He said the 2006 tax credit program, called 
Article 3J Credits, provides businesses with tax credits for creating jobs, investing in business 
property and investing in real property.  Ultimately, a business could receive up to $15,500 per 
job.  Mr. Litvin said the program does not include retail businesses/   
 
It was the consensus of Council to bring this matter forward to the next regular meeting. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-58, Approving Demolition of 301 Charles 
Street; Ordinance 12-59, Approving Demolition of 309 Charles Street; Ordinance 12-60, 
Approving Demolition of 315 Charles Street; and Ordinance 12-61, Approving Demolition 
of 318 Rowland Street. (Reference:  CAF 12-106; 12-107; 12-108 and 12-109) 
 
City Manager Griffin said these four properties are grouped together because they are all owned 
by the same individual.  He then asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to address 
council regarding these demolition requests.  Mr. Williams explained that these properties are all 
owned by Mr. Luis Medina and wife, Veronica who currently reside in Texas and directed 



 

Minute Book 42 
27 August 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 3 of 6 

Council to the e-mail Mr. Medina sent on 23rd August.  He said Mr. Jack Blackburn is 
representing Mr. Medina and asked Mr. Blackburn to present Mr. Medina’s request. 
 
Mr. Blackburn explained how Mr. Medina came to own these properties in 2005, and said that 
because of the turnaround in the housing situation soon after, Mr. Medina was unable to “flip” 
the property and has only been able to keep current with the mortgage payments.   Mr. Blackburn 
said Mr. Medina is asking for a 90 day grace period so he can arrange for a short sale of the 
property.  Mr. Carl Pike, from Triangle North Realty, also sent an e-mail stating he has inspected 
the properties and is willing to prepare a listing, depending on Council’s decision. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked how many properties were initially purchased and where the 
lending bank is located.  Mr. Blackburn responded initially 6 houses and 1 vacant lot.  Mr. 
Medina later purchased two more properties with structures.  The New Republic Bank is 
currently located in Rocky Mount, NC. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked about the timeframe and Mr. Blackburn responded 90 days.  Mr. 
Blackburn went on to say Mr. Medina understood the situation and did not want the City to have 
to be responsible for demolition, thus needing time to sell.  Mr. Blackburn said Mr. Medina is 
planning to remove the out-buildings on the properties. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the Medina’s had made any money from the properties and 
what it would cost to bring the properties up to code.  She also asked if Mr. Medina would redo 
securing the buildings if broken into and whether Mr. Pike was confident he could sell the 
property.  Mr. Blackburn said he thought a couple might have been rented for a short time.  The 
cost to bring them up to code would be substantial, however, Mr. Medina knows he cannot 
continue to own and is willing to keep the grass cut and board up the buildings until they are 
sold.  Mr. Blackburn said it would be Mr. Medina’s responsibility to keep the buildings secure 
and he said he thought Mr. Pike had potential buyers. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked about the cost of demolition.  Mr. Williams said $20,000 was a 
conservative figure. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the properties can be sold once the City approves demolition.  
City Manager Griffin said confirmation with the City Attorney would be necessary but he 
thought a bond could be placed up until a demolition contract is signed.  Mr. Inscoe asked that 
Mr. Medina provide the city with a letter/document confirming his agreement to secure the 
buildings, mow grass, etc. be received prior to Council approving the 90 day extension.  Mr. 
Blackburn felt Mr. Medina would be willing to do this. 
 
Council Member Kearney questioned whether there was an option to have both timelines run 
concurrent (i.e., the 90 day extension and the City’s next step in the demolition process).  Mr. 
Williams said yes. 
 
Council Member Brown asked for verification that Mr. Blackburn and Mr. Pike would not leave 
Mr. Medina stranded during the process.  Mr. Blackburn said they would not. 



 

Minute Book 42 
27 August 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 4 of 6 

 
Code Compliance Director specifically mentioned lis pendens had already been filed and that 
Mr. Medina is aware the process continues even with the extension.  He also said code requires 
sealing the structures with boards placed into the window frames, etc. so it is well sealed and 
more difficult to vandalize.  It was also verified the 90 day extension would begin with Council’s 
approval at the September meeting. 
 
With no further discussion, it was the consensus of Council to bring this matter forward to the 
next regular meeting. 
 
Demolition of 587 Beckford Drive. (Reference:  CAF 12-110; Resolution 12-62) 
 
Code Compliance Director Corey Williams said the proper code enforcement process has been 
followed and no problems are foreseen with going forward with this demolition.  There was no 
discussion. 
  
It was the consensus of Council to bring this forward to the next regular meeting.  
 
Demolition of 707 Marshall Street. (Reference:  CAF 12-111; Resolution 12-63) 
 
Code Compliance Director Corey Williams said heirs currently own this property which has 
been abandoned for a few years.   He said proper enforcement procedures have been followed 
and no problems are foreseen.  There was no discussion 
  
It was the consensus of Council to bring this forward to the next regular meeting. 
 
Demolition of 710 Marshall Street. (Reference:  CAF 12-112; Resolution 12-64) 
 
Code Compliance Director Corey Williams said this property is currently owned by a finance 
company and although proper enforcement procedures have been followed, the finance company 
has not responded.  There was no discussion 
  
It was the consensus of Council to bring this forward to the next regular meeting. 
 
Consideration of Declaring the Old SNB Bank Building on Garnett Street as Surplus 
Property and Authorizing the Solicitation of Proposals from Realtors to Market and Sell 
said Building.  (Reference:  CAF 12-18; Resolution 12-05) 
 
City Manager Griffin said the Land Planning Committee met on 22 August to discuss the 
disposition of the old bank building which continues to be vacant and deteriorating.  The 
Committee unanimously recommends selling the property.  Mr. Griffin also shared a 2007 
appraisal which valued the property at $60,000.  Since that time the property has continued to 
deteriorate. He also said at one time this building was considered as an option for the High Speed 
Rail Station; however, the building is no longer considered for a station due to the location.   
 



 

Minute Book 42 
27 August 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 5 of 6 

Council Member Daeke asked if individuals could be exempt if they expressed interest prior to 
the signing of a sales contract.  Mr. Griffin said yes. 
 
There was no further discussion and it was the consensus of Council to bring this forward to the 
next regular meeting. 
 
Downtown Progress Energy Pole Replacements (Reference:  CM 12-12) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to present this issue.  Mr. Frazier 
said this is a project that has been in the works for some time and although it still needs work, it 
is appropriate to bring to Council for consideration at this time.  Mr. Frazier said Mr. Gerial 
Proctor from Progress Energy will present the project. 
 
Mr. Proctor said the existing poles in the downtown area of Henderson are approximately 75-80 
years old and no longer meet code.  It is the suggestion of the power company to replace the 
poles with decorative black poles which match/compliment the existing poles in the Embassy 
block.  Mr. Proctor said there is no cost to the City for these replacements other than incidental 
costs (i.e., sidewalk repair and the like) and he did say the cost of lighting is slightly higher but it 
is anticipated there will be fewer light poles as the new lights will be LED lights.  The poles will 
also be higher which may be an issue with second floor residential units.  Another issue will be 
the need to shut off power at various times; however, Progress Energy will work on weekends 
and nights to limit the inconvenience. 
 
Council Member Kearney inquired about the estimated $25,000 construction costs to the City.  
Mr. Frazier responded that is a guesstimate for things like sidewalk repair and brick layout 
around the poles.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked if the poles could be used for Christmas decorations.  Mr. Proctor 
said yes. 
 
Mr. Frazier said part of this project would involve the NCDOT raising traffic signals to the 
proper height and installing LED lights. 
 
There were no further questions and this replacement project will be brought back to Council 
when it is ready to proceed which is anticipated to be sometime the beginning of the year.  
 
City Manager Griffin thanked Mr. Proctor for all his work in finding a win-win situation. 
 
Update on Henderson Water Reclamation Facility. Power Point Presentation.  (No 
Reference material) 
 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom 
Spain and McGill Associates Andy Lovingood presented an update on this project.  Mr. 
Lovingood said there have been some changes since the last update --- items that will make the 
plant more cost efficient such as building new clarifiers rather than updating the old clarifiers 



 

Minute Book 42 
27 August 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 6 of 6 

and re-aligning the plant structure so the waste will flow through 17 pumps one time rather than 
the current 41 pumps 3 times.  After completing his presentation showing what the new plant 
will look like, he opened the floor for questions. 
Council Member Inscoe asked how much horsepower reduction is anticipated.  Mr. Lovingood 
said he could not provide specific information at this time but felt it would be significant.  Mr. 
Spain said there will be significant reduction in the amount of chemicals used.  Mr. Inscoe asked 
for verification that once complete, the plant will be a state-of-the-art generic facility.  Mr. 
Lovingood said yes and reminded Council that the City will be well positioned for future new 
regulations.  
 
Council Member Coffey asked if this is the first of its kind or if others exist.  Mr. Lovingood 
mentioned several municipalities either in the process of or already using --- Hickory, Statesville, 
and Oxford.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked about down time and Mr. Lovingood said none is expected and 
went on to say approximately 65,000 man hours are expected to complete the construction. 
 
Mr. Lovingood said the next step in the process is requesting bids which should go out in 
September with the bid openings in October.  Council Member Coffey asked about the bidding 
timeframe and Mr. Lovingood said because of the size of the project the bidding time may be 
extended. 
 
Council was in agreement the project is moving forward in a timely manner. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any other items of business.  There being none, he asked if 
Council was ready to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



CAF 12-114: 10 September 2012 
 Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
30 August 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-114  

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-65, An Amendment to the FY 2012-
2013 Recreation Department Budget to Include Donations for Babe Ruth Softball 
Tournament Expenses, FY 13 Budget Amendment #11. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-65, An Amendment to the FY 2012-2013 Recreation Department 

Budget to Include Donations for Babe Ruth Softball Tournament Expenses, FY 13 Budget 
Amendment #11. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
FY 13 Budget Amendment #11 serves to amend the Recreation Department’s budget within the 
General Fund created for the purpose of accounting for expenses of that department.  Donations 
were made to the City of Henderson and designated for use in offsetting expenditures associated 
with the Babe Ruth Softball Tournament, which are paid from the Recreation Department’s 
budget.  These donations came from various donors and totaled $5,890. 
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Ordinance 12-65 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Short Meeting 
 



CAF 12-114: 10 September 2012 
 Page 2 of 4 

 

O R D I N A N C E  12-65 
 

 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 – 2013 RECREATION DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

TO INCLUDE DONATIONS FOR BABE RUTH SOFTBALL TOURNAMENT 
EXPENSES- FY 13 BUDGET AMENDMENT #11 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, and the reason for FY 12-13 Budget Amendment 
#11 is more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Donations - Rec Dept 10-100-455040 -$             -$               5,890$          5,890$          
-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total -$             -$               5,890$          5,890$          
5,890$          

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Recreation Travel & Schools 10-620-501400 15,000$        24,000$         5,890$          29,890$        
-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total 15,000$        24,000$         5,890$          29,890$        
29,890$        

variance -$             

CAF 12-114; Ordinance 12-65; BA #11; 
10-Sept-2012

This budget amendment serves to amend the budget for the Recreation 
Department.  The original approved budget of $15,000 has been amended by 
interfund transfers totalling $9,000.  The expenses for the Babe Ruth Softball 
tournament were more than anticipated.  $5,890 of donations were received 
from patrons and were designated specifically for use in offsetting expenses of 
this tournament.  This amendment budgets those donations and the 
corresponding expenses.

Reference:

Ordinance 12-65
FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #11Fund: 10: General

Notes:

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-114: 10 September 2012 
 Page 3 of 4 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-65, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 10 day of September 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   
ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-114 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—65 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 10 September 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of September 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-114: 10 September 2012 
 Page 4 of 4 

 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—65 

FY 12-13 Budget Ordinance Amendment #11 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-114) 

 
This amendment serves to amend the operating budget created for the purpose of accounting for 
expenses associated with the Recreation Department.  Additional funds in the form of donations 
have been received and designated for use in assisting with the expenses associated with the 
Babe Ruth Softball Tournament.  These donations were from various donors and totaled $5,890.  
They were used to assist with hotel costs and meals for the participants in the tournament. 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
27 August 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-116  

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-68, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment # 10 
Appropriating Tap Fee from Vance County for Phases 2A & 2B to Rate 
Stabilization 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5:   Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure       

   Systems. 
 KSO 8:   Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to  

   Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities. 
 

Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Ordinance 12-68, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #10 Appropriating Tap Fee 

from Vance County for Phases 2A & 2B to Rate Stabilization 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Water Sales Agreement between the City and County for Phases 2A & 2B, dated 23 July 
2012, provided for the one-time payment of a $140,000 general tap fee.  (See Attachment 2)  The 
check was received on 27 August.   It is recommended the funds be allocated to the Water Plant 
Expansion Capital Reserve in a manner consistent with the Water Reservation Fee being 
received from the Granville County.  An Ordinance providing for same is attached hereto for 
your consideration. 
 
Additionally, the Ordinance provides for annual budget housekeeping for Fund 79: Rate 
Stabilization Capital Reserve.  The fund houses reserves for both sewer plant and water plant 
expansion projects.  The appropriation of funding established in FY11-12 but not expended, plus 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 10 September 2012  
 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 2 of 7 
 

any accrued interest, has now accrued to the Fund’s designated fund balance.  In order to keep 
these funds segregated over time, the process of appropriating forward into FY12-13 ensures for 
accurate budgeting and understanding where the reserve dollars are. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-68 
2. Excerpt from Water Sales Agreement—Phases 2A & 2B 
3. Copy of Check 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 3 of 7 
 

O R D I N A N C E  12-68 
 

 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 – 2013  
RATE STABILIZATION FUND BUDGET 

TO INCLUDE A $140,000 GENERAL TAP FEE FROM VANCE COUNTY 
AND RE-APPROPRIATE UNSPENT FUNDS FROM THE PREVIOUS YEAR 

FY 12-13 BUDGET AMENDMENT #10 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 
FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, on 26 March 2012, the Council voted to establish, maintain and grow a capital 

reserve rate stabilization fund to be used to offset debt service to be incurred by the City 
of Henderson for various utility projects, and to finance any water related expenses 
anticipated as a result of water sales agreements; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital reserve budgets from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in 
this Ordinance and being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised

641: 20 MGD Water Water Reservation Fee-Granville 79-641-433418 951,100$          951,100$           -$                951,100$                    
      Plant Expansion

Tap Fee-Vance Cty Ph 2A & 2B 79-641-433460 -$                 -$                  140,000$         140,000$                    
Investment Income 79-641-444010 10,000$            10,000$             -$                10,000$                      
Fund Balance Appropriated 79-641-491000 -$                 -$                  951,139$         951,139$                    

 641: Total 961,100$          961,100$           1,091,139$      2,052,239$                  

652: HWRF Upgrade Trans Fr: 70 CR Utilities 79-652-461070 264,200$          264,200$           -$                264,200$                    

Investment Income 79-652-440010 1,000$              1,000$               -$                1,000$                        

Fund Balance Appropriated 79-652-491000 -$                 -$                  112,800$         112,800$                    
  652: Total 265,200$          265,200$           112,800$         378,000$                    

TOTAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY -$                           
641: 20 MGD Water 961,100$          961,100$           1,091,139$      2,052,239$                  

652: HWRF Upgrade 265,200$          265,200$           112,800$         378,000$                    
Total Fund Revenues 1,226,300$       1,226,300$         1,203,939$      2,430,239$                  

 
Original Current

Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised
641: 20 MGD Water  
    Plant Expansion Rate Stabilization 79-641-535750 961,100$          961,100$           1,091,139$      2,052,239$                  

641: Total 961,100$          961,100$           1,091,139$      2,052,239$                  

575: HWRF Upgrade Rate Stabilization 79-652-535750 265,200$          265,200$           112,800$         378,000$                    
  652: Total 265,200$          265,200$           112,800$         378,000$                    

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
641: 20 MGD Water 961,100$          961,100$           1,091,139$      2,052,239$                  

652: HWRF Upgrade 265,200$          265,200$           112,800$         378,000$                    
Total Fund Expenditures 1,226,300$       1,226,300$         1,203,939$      2,430,239$                  

RECAP Fund 79 -$                           
Total Revenues 1,226,300$       1,226,300$         1,203,939$      2,430,239$                  

Total Expenditures 1,226,300$       1,226,300$         1,203,939$      2,430,239$                  
Fund Variance -$                 -$                  -$                -$                           

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #10

Ordinance 12-68

Notes:
To budget the one-time payment of a $140,000 general tap fee from Vance County per the Water 
Sales Agreement between the City and County for Phases 2A & 2B, dated 23 July 2012.  This 
amendment will allocate these funds to the Water Plant Expansion Capital Reserve Fund.  
Additionally, to "re-appropriate" funds budgeted but not expended from FY 11-12, which will roll into 
fund balance once the fiscal year books are closed.

FUND:

79: Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization Fund Revenues

79: Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization

CAF: 12-116; Ord 12-68; BA #10; 10-Sept-12

79: Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization Fund Expenditures

Reference:

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-68, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 10 day of Sept 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-116 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-68 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 10 Sept 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of September 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—68 

FY 12-13 Budget Ordinance Amendment #10 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-116) 

 
This budget amendment serves to budget the one-time payment of a $140,000 general tap fee 
from Vance County per the Water Sales Agreement between the City and County for Phases 2A 
& 2B, dated 23 July 2012.  This amendment will allocate these funds to the Water Plant 
Expansion Capital Reserve Fund.  Additionally, this amendment “re-appropriates” funds 
budgeted but not expended from FY 11-12, which will roll into fund balance once the fiscal year 
books are closed. 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 6 of 7 
 



 
CAF 12-116:  10 September 2012 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 



 

 
CAF: 12-121:  Meeting of 10 September 2012 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
6 September 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-121 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-79, Providing for the Disposition of 
Certain Jointly Held Properties by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 1) 
434 Whitten Avenue; 2) 1029 North Garnett Street; and 3) 514 High Street 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and 

expansion of the Housing Stock. Action Plan 4-2 Redevelopment:  to actively pursue the 
redevelopment of traditional residential neighborhoods and the adaptive reuse of 
commercial and business properties 

 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-79, Providing for the Disposition of Certain Jointly Held 

Properties by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 1) 434 Whitten Avenue; 2) 1029 
North Garnett Street; and 3) 514 High Street 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The City and County administrations are currently working on a draft inter-local agreement for 
the governing bodies to consider.  The agreement would deal with jointly owned properties 
obtained through the tax foreclosure process.  In the interim, there is interest from the private 
sector to purchase three such lots as noted in the Resolution.  It is requested Council approve the 
transfer of these three properties to Vance County with the understanding upon their sale, the 
proceeds will be shared on a pro-rata basis based on the amount of taxes owed to the City and 
County.  The agreement that provided for the disposition of the Armory and First National Bank 
buildings would be used as the model for the draft agreement. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 2012 Regular Meeting 
 



 

 
CAF: 12-121:  Meeting of 10 September 2012 

Page 2 of 5 
 

According to Tax Collector Brooks, there were no City liens for demolition or grass cutting on 
these three properties.  The taxes owed at the time of foreclosure were as follows: 
 434 Whitten Ave; $1,920 
 1029 N. Garnett St.; $12,080 
 514 High St.; $2,995 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-79 
2. Email from Tax Collector Brooks, 6 Sept 12 

 



 

 
CAF: 12-121:  Meeting of 10 September 2012 

Page 3 of 5 
 

RESOLUTION 12—79 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF CERTAIN 
JOINTLY HELD PROPERTIES BY THE CITY AND COUNTY 

OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED AS 1) 434 WHITTEN AVENUE; 2) 1029 
NORTH GARNETT STREET; AND 3) 514 HIGH STREET 

 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows:  KSO 4: To Improve the Condition 
of the Housing Stock, Action Plan 4-2, Redevelopment; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) and County of Vance (County) have previously 
discussed the possibility of disposing jointly owned properties acquired through the tax 
foreclosure process; and 

WHEREAS, the processes to dispose of jointly held properties is cumbersome; and  

WHEREAS, there are potential buyers for each of the previously mentioned properties and both 
the County and City administrations believe it appropriate for the City to transfer its 
interest in said properties to the County in order that they might be more expeditiously 
sold; and  

WHEREAS, once sold, the City would receive its pro-rata share of the proceeds from the 
County. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 
authorize the following: 

1. The City Attorney to work with the County Attorney to expeditiously prepare the 
necessary agreements and documents to effect the transfer of the aforementioned 
properties from the City of Henderson to the County of Vance; and 

2. Said transfer of interests in property is predicated upon and conditioned by the 
appropriate pro-rata division of any net proceeds from the eventual sale of said 
properties, either individually or collectively, between the City and County. 



 

 
CAF: 12-121:  Meeting of 10 September 2012 

Page 4 of 5 
 

3. The Mayor is authorized to sign any such agreements and documentation as prepared and 
approved by the City Attorney to effect the transfer of said properties to the County of 
Vance. 

The foregoing Resolution 12-79, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
** on this the 10th day of September 2012:  YES:  .  NO:   .  ABSTAIN:   .  ABSENT:  Coffey,. 
    

      _____________________________ 
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 

Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. ** 



 

 
CAF: 12-121:  Meeting of 10 September 2012 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

CAF 12-121 
Attachment #2 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 1 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
5 September  2012 

 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-A-106 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-75, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to 
Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 301 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and 
Improve the Property.  

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and expansion of the 

Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the rehabilitation 

and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing in order to remove 
blight. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-75, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the Owner of the 

Property Located at 301 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina are the owners of 301 Charles Street.  They are requesting an 
extension to secure the structures, improve the appearance of the property, and delay the approval of the 
demolition ordinances.  The ninety (90) day extension is expected to give the owners enough time to 
secure structures and abate the property.  During this extension period, the property is expected to sell to 
an investor that can repair or demolish the structures and bring them into compliance with the City Code 
and other applicable codes that may apply. The resolution and Stay Agreement attached affirms the 
extension and delay of approval of the demolition ordinances with additional abatement timeline.  The 
purpose of the delay for approval of demolition ordinances is because when a demolition ordinance has 
been approved by the City Council, it may prevent an investor or bank from funding an 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept., 2012  Reg. Meeting 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 2 of 13 

 

investment/project such as this.  Therefore, the preference of the City Council, on 27 August 2012 during 
the Work Session, is to allow a ninety (90) day extension and delay approval of demolition ordinances. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-75 
2. Ordinance 12-58 
3. Pictures of Structures 
 

                                         
                                                                                                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 3 of 13 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-75 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A 90 DAY EXTENSION TO ALLOW THE OWNER OF 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 301 CHARLES STREET TO SECURE THE 

STRUCTURE AND IMPROVE THE PROPERTY  
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 4 (Action 

Plan 4-1): Improve housing stock by aggressive code enforcement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property of 301 Charles Street is deteriorated or dilapidated and creating blight 
for the neighborhood where vagrants are entering the structures and creating conditions 
of a fire hazard; and 

 
WHEREAS, the conditions of the above dwelling and property are in violation of the City Codes 

Chapter 21 Minimum Housing, Chapter 21-A Abandoned Structure, Chapter 23 Weeds, 
and other applicable codes and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners have requested an extension to secure the structures, improve the 

appearance of the property, and delay the approval of the demolition ordinances from the 
City Council.  The owners are proposing to maintain the lawns; re-secure the units, 
remove the burnt sheds behind the properties, and commit to repairing or demolishing the 
property/structure in accordance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may 
apply. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE an extension of ninety (90) days and will delay the 
approval of Ordinance 12-58 under the condition that the owners will do each of the 
following terms: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month, 
b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 

with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 days. 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the property within the first forty-five (45) days 
d. Commit to seeing that the property is completely repaired or demolished within 

ninety (90) days as set forth in the attached Agreement, being more fully articulated 
in Attachment A to this Resolution. 
 

On December 10, 2012, the ninety (90) day extension will expire and the City Council 
will revisit the approval of Ordinance 12-58. 
 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 4 of 13 

 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-75, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2012:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 12-A-106 
 
 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 5 of 13 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF VANCE     AGREEMENT TO STAY 
        ENFORCEMENT OF MINIMUM 
        HOUSING CODE AND/OR 
        ABANDONED STRUCTURES 
        ORDINANCE    
 
Vance County Tax Parcel 0073 04004 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the 10th day of September 2012 by and 
between the City of Henderson, North Carolina, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
 
Luis Medine and Veronica Medina, (with a mailing address of 309 Fritz Way; Cibolo, Texas 
78108) (“Owners”)  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners own certain property, and the improvements thereon, located at  
301 Charles Street, Henderson, North Carolina, and more particularly described in the deed 
recorded in Deed Book 1103 Page 482 of the Vance County Registry (“the Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has determined that the Property is in violation of the 
Minimum Housing Ordinance and the Abandoned Structures Ordinance of the City of 
Henderson, Chapters 21 and 21A, respectively, of the City Code, and has ordered the Owners of 
the Property to vacate and close the Property and repair or demolish the Property to bring it into 
compliance with the respective City Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners are in the process of obtaining methods for the improvement of 
the Property and have requested the City to stay the enforcement of proceedings under the 
Minimum Housing Code or Abandoned Structure Ordinance to facilitate the rehabilitation of the 
Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners hereby commit to rehabilitating the above property so that it 
will fully comply with the applicable City Code provisions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is willing to agree to stay enforcement of demolition proceedings 
under the City Codes subject to the Owners’ Agreement to proceed with the rehabilitation of the 
Property in accordance with the Agreement attached. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual terms and 
conditions herein set forth the parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Owners agree to take all action necessary to commence the rehabilitation of the 
Property within forty (40) days from the date of this agreement. After commencement 
of the work the Owners agree to proceed in a timely and expeditious manner to bring 

Resolution 12-75 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 6 of 13 

 

the Property into substantial compliance with the City’s Codes by December 10, 
2012, in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month 

hereafter, and 
 

b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 
with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 
days hereafter, and 

 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the properties within the first forty-five (45) days 

hereafter, and 
 

d. Within the first forty (40) days, the Owners shall repair/replace all defective existing 
foundation (piers, sills, guides), clean and remove any debris and public nuisances 
(trash, overgrowth) on the Property as required (according to Code Compliance 
Department specification) and  

 
e. Within fifty (50) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete repair of all defective roof 

framing, roof sheathing and felt, flashing, boxing, fascias, permanent roof and 
chimney; and 

 
f. Within sixty (60) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to the 

outside windows and doors, siding and/or brick veneer, porches, exterior trim and 
exterior paint (prime); 

 
g. Within seventy (70) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete any required rough-in 

plumbing, rough in wiring, rough-in heating/cooling ductwork 
 

h. Within eighty (80) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to 
the insulation (floors, walls & ceilings) interior walls, floors and ceilings 
(sheetrock/paneling impervious flooring in kitchen and bath room areas), interior 
paint (prime); 

 
i. By December 10, 2012 (ninety (90) after the date of this Agreement), the Owners 

shall complete all required repairs to the bathroom finishes, plumbing (baths and 
kitchen), water heater, interior paint (including fixtures & trim) and exterior paint. 
(Accessory building has no plumbing or electricity.) 

 
The Owners shall obtain all necessary permits for the work and complete the work in 
accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations. 
 

2. So long as the Owners are in compliance with this Agreement, the City agrees to stay 
and forbear from any further enforcement proceedings under the Minimum Housing 
Code and/ Abandoned Structures Ordinance or under that Ordinance 12-58. Upon the 
Owners’ compliance with all of the requirements of the applicable code, the City 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 7 of 13 

 

Manager shall recommend to the City Council that such Ordinance 12-58 be tabled or 
repealed in its entirety. 

 
3. The Owners specifically understand and agree that the failure to meet any of the 

compliance deadlines in the Agreement shall be cause for the City to continue with 
proceedings under the Minimum Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance, as appropriate. In the event that the Owners fail to meet such deadlines, 
and the City thereafter determines that it is desirable to take additional action under 
the City’s Codes, the City agrees to provide written notice of such determination to 
any Owner’s lender (as indicated in the records on file in the Vance County Registry). 
The lender shall have thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice to provide 
written notice to the City of the lender’s intention to commence foreclosure of the 
Property and/or cure the failure. After receipt of such written notice, the City shall 
allow the lender a reasonable time to complete the foreclosure of the Property and/or 
cure the failure prior to the continuance of proceedings under the City’s Codes. 

 
4. In the event the Owners (and any lender) fail to meet any compliance deadlines in this 

Agreement the Owners do hereby agree for herself/himself and her/his successors and 
assigns to accept service of any notices, complaints and orders under the Minimum 
Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures Ordinance by first-class mail. The 
Owners hereby waive any requirements for service as set forth in G.S. 160A-445 and 
in the Henderson City Code.  Also in such event, the City Council can proceed 
(without further process) with the consideration and/or passage of Ordinance 12-58 
relative to the demolition of the structure located on the above property (after mailing 
notice to the Owners at the Owners’ last known address at least 10 days before the 
Ordinance is again to be considered by the City Council). 

 
5. Owners further agree and hereby permit the Code Compliance Officer/Housing 

Inspectors for the City of Henderson to enter upon the Property at reasonable times 
for the purposes of inspecting the work and condition of the Property until such time 
as the Property is brought into compliance with all City Codes and Ordinances. 

 
6. The Owners agree that the promises and assurances made by the City in this 

agreement constitute good and sufficient consideration for the promises made by 
Owners in this Agreement. 

 
7. The Owners’ obligations shall run with the land and impose a continuing obligation 

on the holder of the title of the Property to comply with the terms and conditions of 
all of the City’s Codes of Ordinances. 

 
8. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, trustees or successors and assigns of 

the parties. 
 
9. It is agreed that the City’s failure to insist on the strict performance of any provisions 

of this agreement or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 8 of 13 

 

acceptance of any performance during such breach, shall not constitute a waiver of 
any rights under this agreement. 

 
10. This agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any governmental authority or right of 

the City. 
 
11. In the event this Agreement is not signed by both Owners, duly notarized, and 

returned to the City Manager of the City of Henderson by September 25, 2012, then 
this Agreement shall be null and void ab initio. 

 
12. This agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Owners have caused this agreement to be duly 
executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
      By: _______________________________ (SEAL) 
             Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
 
      By:________________________________(SEAL) 
                                                                              Corey K.Williams, Code Administrator 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Ray Griffin, City 
Manager of the City of Henderson, and Corey K. Williams, Code Administrator for the City of 
Henderson, a municipal corporation, personally appeared before me this day, acknowledging to me that 
they each voluntarily signed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said municipal corporation for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity indicated. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ (SEAL) 
 Notary Public 
 My Commission Expires:________________ 
 
 
 
        
 We each understand and consent to the terms of this Agreement: 
 
                 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 9 of 13 

 

      OWNERS 
         
      ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Luis Medina 
 
     
            ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Veronica Medina  
                
             
STATE OF ________________ 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

 
I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Luis Medina and 

wife, Veronica Medina, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 
the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.  Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal 
this ___ day of  ___________________, 2012. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires:________________ 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 10 of 13 

 

ORDINANCE 12-58 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE 
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE 
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. §160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation; 

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 
 

     Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; 

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of 
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the 
following address: 

301 Charles Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0073 04004 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. §160A-443. 
 

Section 3.  Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 
Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 11 of 13 

 

surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. §160A-446(6). 
 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
§160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-58, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by 
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was ** on this the **  day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 

 
 

                                                                          ________________________________ 
         James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.  



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 12 of 13 

 

301 Charles Street 
Attachment 3  

 
 

 
 
 

 



CAF 12-A-106: 10 September 2012 
Page 13 of 13 

 

 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
5 September 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-A-107 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-76, Granting a Ninety (90) Day 
Extension to Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 309 Charles Street to 
Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and 

expansion of the Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 

rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-76, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the Owner of 

the Property Located at 309 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina are the owners of, 309 Charles Street.  They are 
requesting an extension to secure the structures, improve the appearance of the property, and 
delay the approval of the demolition ordinances.  The ninety (90) day extension is expected to 
give the owners enough time to secure structures and abate the property.  During this extension 
period, the property is expected to sell to an investor that can repair or demolish the structures 
and bring them into compliance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may apply. 
The resolution and Stay Agreement attached affirms the extension and delay of approval of the 
demolition ordinance with additional abatement timeline.  The purpose of the delay for approval 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept. 12, Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 2 of 12 

 

of demolition ordinance is because when a demolition ordinance has been approved by the City 
Council, it may prevent an investor or bank from funding an investment/project such as this.  
Therefore, the preference of the City Council, on 27 August  2012 during the Work Session, is to 
allow a ninety(90) day extension and delay approval of demolition ordinances. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-76  
2. Ordinance 12-59 
3. Pictures of Structures 

 
 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 3 of 12 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-76 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A 90 DAY EXTENSION TO ALLOW THE OWNER OF 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 309 CHARLES STREET TO SECURE THE 

STRUCTURE AND IMPROVE THE PROPERTY  
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 4 (Action 

Plan 4-1): Improve housing stock by aggressive code enforcement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property of 309 Charles Street is deteriorated or dilapidated and creating blight 
for the neighborhood where vagrants are entering the structures and creating conditions 
of a fire hazard; and 

 
WHEREAS, the conditions of the above dwelling and property are in violation of the City Codes 

Chapter 21 Minimum Housing, Chapter 21-A Abandoned Structure, Chapter 23 Weeds, 
and other applicable codes and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners have requested an extension to secure the structures, improve the 

appearance of the property, and delay the approval of the demolition ordinances from the 
City Council.  The owners are proposing to maintain the lawns; re-secure the units, 
remove the burnt sheds behind the properties, and commit to repairing or demolishing the 
property/structure in accordance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may 
apply. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE an extension of ninety (90) days and will delay the 
approval of Ordinance 12-59 under the condition that the owners will do each of the 
following terms: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month, 
b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 

with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 days. 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the property within the first forty-five (45) days 
d. Commit to seeing that the property is completely repaired or demolished within 

ninety (90) days as set forth in the attached Agreement being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution. 
 

On December 10, 2012, the ninety (90) day extension will expire and the City Council 
will revisit the approval of Ordinance 12-59. 
 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 4 of 12 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-76, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2012:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 12-A-107 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 5 of 12 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF VANCE     AGREEMENT TO STAY 
        ENFORCEMENT OF MINIMUM 
        HOUSING CODE AND/OR 
        ABANDONED STRUCTURES 
        ORDINANCE    
 
Vance County Tax Parcel 0073 04005 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the 10th day of September 2012 by and 
between the City of Henderson, North Carolina, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
 
Luis Medine and Veronica Medina, (with a mailing address of 309 Fritz Way; Cibolo, Texas 
78108) (“Owners”)  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners own certain property, and the improvements thereon, located at  
309 Charles Street, Henderson, North Carolina, and more particularly described in the deed 
recorded in Deed Book 1103 Page 482 of the Vance County Registry (“the Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has determined that the Property is in violation of the 
Minimum Housing Ordinance and the Abandoned Structures Ordinance of the City of 
Henderson, Chapters 21 and 21A, respectively, of the City Code, and has ordered the Owners of 
the Property to vacate and close the Property and repair or demolish the Property to bring it into 
compliance with the respective City Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners are in the process of obtaining methods for the improvement of 
the Property and have requested the City to stay the enforcement of proceedings under the 
Minimum Housing Code or Abandoned Structure Ordinance to facilitate the rehabilitation of the 
Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners hereby commit to rehabilitating the above property so that it 
will fully comply with the applicable City Code provisions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is willing to agree to stay enforcement of demolition proceedings 
under the City Codes subject to the Owners’ Agreement to proceed with the rehabilitation of the 
Property in accordance with the Agreement attached. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual terms and 
conditions herein set forth the parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Owners agree to take all action necessary to commence the rehabilitation of the 
Property within forty (40) days from the date of this agreement. After commencement 
of the work the Owners agree to proceed in a timely and expeditious manner to bring 

Resolution 12-76 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 6 of 12 

 

the Property into substantial compliance with the City’s Codes by December 10, 
2012, in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month 

hereafter, and 
 

b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 
with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 
days hereafter, and 

 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the properties within the first forty-five (45) days 

hereafter, and 
 

d. Within the first forty (40) days, the Owners shall repair/replace all defective existing 
foundation (piers, sills, guides), clean and remove any debris and public nuisances 
(trash, overgrowth) on the Property as required (according to Code Compliance 
Department specification) and  

 
e. Within fifty (50) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete repair of all defective roof 

framing, roof sheathing and felt, flashing, boxing, fascias, permanent roof and 
chimney; and 

 
f. Within sixty (60) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to the 

outside windows and doors, siding and/or brick veneer, porches, exterior trim and 
exterior paint (prime); 

 
g. Within seventy (70) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete any required rough-in 

plumbing, rough in wiring, rough-in heating/cooling ductwork 
 

h. Within eighty (80) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to 
the insulation (floors, walls & ceilings) interior walls, floors and ceilings 
(sheetrock/paneling impervious flooring in kitchen and bath room areas), interior 
paint (prime); 

 
i. By December 10, 2012 (ninety (90) after the date of this Agreement), the Owners 

shall complete all required repairs to the bathroom finishes, plumbing (baths and 
kitchen), water heater, interior paint (including fixtures & trim) and exterior paint. 
(Accessory building has no plumbing or electricity.) 

 
The Owners shall obtain all necessary permits for the work and complete the work in 
accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations. 
 

2. So long as the Owners are in compliance with this Agreement, the City agrees to stay 
and forbear from any further enforcement proceedings under the Minimum Housing 
Code and/ Abandoned Structures Ordinance or under that Ordinance 12-59. Upon the 
Owners’ compliance with all of the requirements of the applicable code, the City 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 7 of 12 

 

Manager shall recommend to the City Council that such Ordinance 12-59 be tabled or  
repealed in its entirety. 

 
3. The Owners specifically understand and agree that the failure to meet any of the 

compliance deadlines in the Agreement shall be cause for the City to continue with 
proceedings under the Minimum Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance, as appropriate. In the event that the Owners fail to meet such deadlines, 
and the City thereafter determines that it is desirable to take additional action under 
the City’s Codes, the City agrees to provide written notice of such determination to 
any Owner’s lender (as indicated in the records on file in the Vance County Registry). 
The lender shall have thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice to provide 
written notice to the City of the lender’s intention to commence foreclosure of the 
Property and/or cure the failure. After receipt of such written notice, the City shall 
allow the lender a reasonable time to complete the foreclosure of the Property and/or 
cure the failure prior to the continuance of proceedings under the City’s Codes. 

 
4. In the event the Owners (and any lender) fail to meet any compliance deadlines in this 

Agreement the Owners do hereby agree for herself/himself and her/his successors and 
assigns to accept service of any notices, complaints and orders under the Minimum 
Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures Ordinance by first-class mail. The 
Owners hereby waive any requirements for service as set forth in G.S. 160A-445 and 
in the Henderson City Code.  Also in such event, the City Council can proceed 
(without further process) with the consideration and/or passage of Ordinance 12-59 
relative to the demolition of the structure located on the above property (after mailing 
notice to the Owners at the Owners’ last known address at least 10 days before the 
Ordinance is again to be considered by the City Council). 

 
5. Owners further agree and hereby permit the Code Compliance Officer/Housing 

Inspectors for the City of Henderson to enter upon the Property at reasonable times 
for the purposes of inspecting the work and condition of the Property until such time 
as the Property is brought into compliance with all City Codes and Ordinances. 

 
6. The Owners agree that the promises and assurances made by the City in this 

agreement constitute good and sufficient consideration for the promises made by 
Owners in this Agreement. 

 
7. The Owners’ obligations shall run with the land and impose a continuing obligation 

on the holder of the title of the Property to comply with the terms and conditions of 
all of the City’s Codes of Ordinances. 

 
8. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, trustees or successors and assigns of 

the parties. 
 
9. It is agreed that the City’s failure to insist on the strict performance of any provisions 

of this agreement or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 8 of 12 

 

acceptance of any performance during such breach, shall not constitute a waiver of 
any rights under this agreement. 

 
10. This agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any governmental authority or right of 

the City. 
 
11. In the event this Agreement is not signed by both Owners, duly notarized, and 

returned to the City Manager of the City of Henderson by September 25, 2012, then 
this Agreement shall be null and void ab initio. 

 
12. This agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Owners have caused this agreement to be duly 
executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
      By: _______________________________ (SEAL) 
             Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
 
      By:________________________________(SEAL) 
                                                                              Corey K.Williams, Code Administrator 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Ray Griffin, City 
Manager of the City of Henderson, and Corey K. Williams, Code Administrator for the City of 
Henderson, a municipal corporation, personally appeared before me this day, acknowledging to me that 
they each voluntarily signed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said municipal corporation for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity indicated. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires:________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 We each understand and consent to the terms of this Agreement: 
 
                 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 9 of 12 

 

      OWNERS 
         
      ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Luis Medina 
 
     
            ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Veronica Medina  
                
             
STATE OF ________________ 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

 
I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Luis Medina and 

wife, Veronica Medina, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 
the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.  Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal 
this ___ day of  ___________________, 2012. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires:________________ 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 10 of 12 

 

ORDINANCE 12-59 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE 
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE 
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation. 

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; “This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; 
the use or occupation of this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on 
the structure located at the following address: 

309 Charles Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0073 04005 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443. 

 
Section 3.  Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 

Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 
surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. 160A-446(6). 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 11 of 12 

 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-59, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by 
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was ** on this the **  day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 12-A-107: 10 September 2012 
Page 12 of 12 

 

 
Attachment 3 

 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

September 5, 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-A-108 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-77, Granting a Ninety (90) Day 
Extension to Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 315 Charles Street to 
Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and 

expansion of the Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 

rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-77, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the Owner of 

the Property Located at 315 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina are the owners of 315 Charles Street.  They are 
requesting an extension to secure the structures, improve the appearance of the property, and 
delay the approval of the demolition ordinance.  The ninety (90) day extension is expected to 
give the owners enough time to secure structures and abate the property.  During this extension 
period, the property is expected to sell to an investor that can repair or demolish the structures 
and bring them into compliance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may apply. 
The resolution and Stay Agreement attached affirms the extension and delay of approval of the 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 2 of 12 

 

demolition ordinances with additional abatement timeline.  The purpose of the delay for approval 
of demolition ordinances is because when a demolition ordinance has been approved by the City 
Council, it may prevent an investor or bank from funding an investment / project such as this.  
Therefore, the preference of the City Council, on August 27, 2012 during the Work Session, is to 
allow a ninety (90) day extension and delay approval of demolition ordinances. 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 12-77 
2. Ordinance 12-60 
3. Pictures of Structures 

 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 3 of 12 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-77 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A 90 DAY EXTENSION TO ALLOW THE OWNER OF 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 315 CHARLES STREET TO SECURE THE 

STRUCTURE AND IMPROVE THE PROPERTY  
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 4 (Action 

Plan 4-1): Improve housing stock by aggressive code enforcement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property of 315 Charles Street is deteriorated or dilapidated and creating blight 
for the neighborhood where vagrants are entering the structures and creating conditions 
of a fire hazard; and 

 
WHEREAS, the conditions of the above dwelling and property are in violation of the City Codes 

Chapter 21 Minimum Housing, Chapter 21-A Abandoned Structure, Chapter 23 Weeds, 
and other applicable codes and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners have requested an extension to secure the structures, improve the 

appearance of the property, and delay the approval of the demolition ordinances from the 
City Council.  The owners are proposing to maintain the lawns; re-secure the units, 
remove the burnt sheds behind the properties, and commit to repairing or demolishing the 
property/structure in accordance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may 
apply. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE an extension of ninety (90) days and will delay the 
approval of Ordinance 12-60 under the condition that the owners will do each of the 
following terms: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month, 
b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 

with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 days. 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the property within the first forty-five (45) days 
d. Commit to seeing that the property is completely repaired or demolished within 

ninety (90) days as set forth in the attached Agreement, being more fully articulated 
in Attachment A to this Resolution. 
 

On December 10, 2012, the ninety (90) day extension will expire and the City Council 
will revisit the approval of Ordinance 12-60. 
 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 4 of 12 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-77, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2012:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 12-A-108 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 5 of 12 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF VANCE     AGREEMENT TO STAY 
        ENFORCEMENT OF MINIMUM 
        HOUSING CODE AND/OR 
        ABANDONED STRUCTURES 
        ORDINANCE    
 
Vance County Tax Parcel 0073 04006 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the 10th day of September 2012 by and 
between the City of Henderson, North Carolina, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
 
Luis Medine and Veronica Medina, (with a mailing address of 309 Fritz Way; Cibolo, Texas 
78108) (“Owners”)  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners own certain property, and the improvements thereon, located at  
315 Charles Street, Henderson, North Carolina, and more particularly described in the deed 
recorded in Deed Book 1103 Page 482 of the Vance County Registry (“the Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has determined that the Property is in violation of the 
Minimum Housing Ordinance and the Abandoned Structures Ordinance of the City of 
Henderson, Chapters 21 and 21A, respectively, of the City Code, and has ordered the Owners of 
the Property to vacate and close the Property and repair or demolish the Property to bring it into 
compliance with the respective City Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners are in the process of obtaining methods for the improvement of 
the Property and have requested the City to stay the enforcement of proceedings under the 
Minimum Housing Code or Abandoned Structure Ordinance to facilitate the rehabilitation of the 
Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners hereby commit to rehabilitating the above property so that it 
will fully comply with the applicable City Code provisions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is willing to agree to stay enforcement of demolition proceedings 
under the City Codes subject to the Owners’ Agreement to proceed with the rehabilitation of the 
Property in accordance with the Agreement attached. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual terms and 
conditions herein set forth the parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Owners agree to take all action necessary to commence the rehabilitation of the 
Property within forty (40) days from the date of this agreement. After commencement 
of the work the Owners agree to proceed in a timely and expeditious manner to bring 

Resolution 12-77 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 6 of 12 

 

the Property into substantial compliance with the City’s Codes by December 10, 
2012, in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month 

hereafter, and 
 

b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 
with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 
days hereafter, and 

 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the properties within the first forty-five (45) days 

hereafter, and 
 

d. Within the first forty (40) days, the Owners shall repair/replace all defective existing 
foundation (piers, sills, guides), clean and remove any debris and public nuisances 
(trash, overgrowth) on the Property as required (according to Code Compliance 
Department specification) and  

 
e. Within fifty (50) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete repair of all defective roof 

framing, roof sheathing and felt, flashing, boxing, fascias, permanent roof and 
chimney; and 

 
f. Within sixty (60) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to the 

outside windows and doors, siding and/or brick veneer, porches, exterior trim and 
exterior paint (prime); 

 
g. Within seventy (70) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete any required rough-in 

plumbing, rough in wiring, rough-in heating/cooling ductwork 
 

h. Within eighty (80) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to 
the insulation (floors, walls & ceilings) interior walls, floors and ceilings 
(sheetrock/paneling impervious flooring in kitchen and bath room areas), interior 
paint (prime); 

 
i. By December 10, 2012 (ninety (90) after the date of this Agreement), the Owners 

shall complete all required repairs to the bathroom finishes, plumbing (baths and 
kitchen), water heater, interior paint (including fixtures & trim) and exterior paint. 
(Accessory building has no plumbing or electricity.) 

 
The Owners shall obtain all necessary permits for the work and complete the work in 
accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations. 
 

2. So long as the Owners are in compliance with this Agreement, the City agrees to stay 
and forbear from any further enforcement proceedings under the Minimum Housing 
Code and/ Abandoned Structures Ordinance or under that Ordinance 12-60. Upon the 
Owners’ compliance with all of the requirements of the applicable code, the City 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 7 of 12 

 

Manager shall recommend to the City Council that such Ordinance 12-60 be tabled or 
repealed in its entirety. 

 
3. The Owners specifically understand and agree that the failure to meet any of the 

compliance deadlines in the Agreement shall be cause for the City to continue with 
proceedings under the Minimum Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance, as appropriate. In the event that the Owners fail to meet such deadlines, 
and the City thereafter determines that it is desirable to take additional action under 
the City’s Codes, the City agrees to provide written notice of such determination to 
any Owner’s lender (as indicated in the records on file in the Vance County Registry). 
The lender shall have thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice to provide 
written notice to the City of the lender’s intention to commence foreclosure of the 
Property and/or cure the failure. After receipt of such written notice, the City shall 
allow the lender a reasonable time to complete the foreclosure of the Property and/or 
cure the failure prior to the continuance of proceedings under the City’s Codes. 

 
4. In the event the Owners (and any lender) fail to meet any compliance deadlines in this 

Agreement the Owners do hereby agree for herself/himself and her/his successors and 
assigns to accept service of any notices, complaints and orders under the Minimum 
Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures Ordinance by first-class mail. The 
Owners hereby waive any requirements for service as set forth in G.S. 160A-445 and 
in the Henderson City Code.  Also in such event, the City Council can proceed 
(without further process) with the consideration and/or passage of Ordinance 12-60 
relative to the demolition of the structure located on the above property (after mailing 
notice to the Owners at the Owners’ last known address at least 10 days before the 
Ordinance is again to be considered by the City Council). 

 
5. Owners further agree and hereby permit the Code Compliance Officer/Housing 

Inspectors for the City of Henderson to enter upon the Property at reasonable times 
for the purposes of inspecting the work and condition of the Property until such time 
as the Property is brought into compliance with all City Codes and Ordinances. 

 
6. The Owners agree that the promises and assurances made by the City in this 

agreement constitute good and sufficient consideration for the promises made by 
Owners in this Agreement. 

 
7. The Owners’ obligations shall run with the land and impose a continuing obligation 

on the holder of the title of the Property to comply with the terms and conditions of 
all of the City’s Codes of Ordinances. 

 
8. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, trustees or successors and assigns of 

the parties. 
 
9. It is agreed that the City’s failure to insist on the strict performance of any provisions 

of this agreement or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 8 of 12 

 

acceptance of any performance during such breach, shall not constitute a waiver of 
any rights under this agreement. 

 
10. This agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any governmental authority or right of 

the City. 
 
11. In the event this Agreement is not signed by both Owners, duly notarized, and 

returned to the City Manager of the City of Henderson by September 25, 2012, then 
this Agreement shall be null and void ab initio. 

 
12. This agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Owners have caused this agreement to be duly 
executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
      By: _______________________________ (SEAL) 
             Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
 
      By:________________________________(SEAL) 
                                                                              Corey K.Williams, Code Administrator 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Ray Griffin, City 
Manager of the City of Henderson, and Corey K. Williams, Code Administrator for the City of 
Henderson, a municipal corporation, personally appeared before me this day, acknowledging to me that 
they each voluntarily signed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said municipal corporation for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity indicated. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires:________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 We each understand and consent to the terms of this Agreement: 
 
                 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 9 of 12 

 

      OWNERS 
         
      ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Luis Medina 
 
     
            ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Veronica Medina  
                
             
STATE OF ________________ 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

 
I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Luis Medina and 

wife, Veronica Medina, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 
the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.  Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal 
this ___ day of  ___________________, 2012. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires:________________ 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 10 of 12 

 

ORDINANCE 12-60 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE 
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE 
PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE 
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation. 

 
NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 

 

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; 

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of 
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the 
following address: 

315 Charles Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0073 04006 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. §160A-443. 

 
Section 3.  Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 

Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 11 of 12 

 

surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. §160A-446(6). 
 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
§160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-60, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was ** on this the **  day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 
 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-A-108: 10 September 2012 
Page 12 of 12 

 

Attachment 3 
 
 

 

 
 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 1 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
September 5, 2012 

 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-A-109 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-78, Granting a Ninety (90) Day 
Extension to Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 318 Rowland Street to 
Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and 

expansion of the Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 

rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12—78, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the Owner of 

the Property Located at 318 Rowland Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the Property. 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina are the owners of 318 Rowland Street.  They are 
requesting an extension to secure the structures, improve the appearance of the property, and 
delay the approval of the demolition ordinances.  The ninety (90) day extension is expected to 
give the owners enough time to secure structures and abate the property.  During this extension 
period, the property is expected to sell to an investor that can repair or demolish the structures 
and bring them into compliance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may apply. 
The resolution and Stay Agreement attached affirms the extension and delay of approval of the 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 2 of 13 

 

demolition ordinance with additional abatement timeline.  The purpose of the delay for approval 
of demolition ordinances is because when a demolition ordinance has been approved by the City 
Council, it may prevent an investor or bank from funding an investment/project such as this.  
Therefore, the preference of the City Council, on August 27, 2012 during the Work Session, is to 
allow a ninety (90) day extension and delay approval of demolition ordinance. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-78 
2. Ordinance 12-61 
3. Pictures of Structures 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 3 of 13 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-78 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A 90 DAY EXTENSION TO ALLOW THE OWNER OF 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 318 ROWLAND STREET TO SECURE THE 

STRUCTURE AND IMPROVE THE PROPERTY  
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 4 (Action 

Plan 4-1): Improve housing stock by aggressive code enforcement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property of 318 Rowland Street is deteriorated or dilapidated and creating blight 
for the neighborhood where vagrants are entering the structures and creating conditions 
of a fire hazard; and 

 
WHEREAS ,the conditions of the above dwelling and property are in violation of the City Codes 

Chapter 21 Minimum Housing, Chapter 21-A Abandoned Structure, Chapter 23 Weeds, 
and other applicable codes and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners have requested an extension to secure the structures, improve the 

appearance of the property, and delay the approval of the demolition ordinances from the 
City Council.  The owners are proposing to maintain the lawns; re-secure the units, 
remove the burnt sheds behind the properties, and commit to repairing or demolishing the 
property/structure in accordance with the City Code and other applicable codes that may 
apply. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE an extension of ninety (90) days and will delay the 
approval of Ordinance 12-61 under the condition that the owners will do each of the 
following terms: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month, 
b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 

with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 days. 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the property within the first forty-five (45) days 
d. Commit to seeing that the property is completely repaired or demolished within 

ninety (90) days as set forth in the attached Agreement, being more fully articulated 
in Attachment A to this Resolution. 
 

On December 10, 2012, the ninety (90) day extension will expire and the City Council 
will revisit the approval of Ordinance 12-61. 
 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 4 of 13 

 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-78, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2012:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 12-A-109 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 5 of 13 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF VANCE     AGREEMENT TO STAY 
        ENFORCEMENT OF MINIMUM 
        HOUSING CODE AND/OR 
        ABANDONED STRUCTURES 
        ORDINANCE    
 
Vance County Tax Parcel 0073 04002 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the 10th day of September 2012 by and 
between the City of Henderson, North Carolina, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
 
Luis Medine and Veronica Medina, (with a mailing address of 309 Fritz Way; Cibolo, Texas 
78108) (“Owners”)  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners own certain property, and the improvements thereon, located at  
318 Rowland Street, Henderson, North Carolina, and more particularly described in the deed 
recorded in Deed Book 1103 Page 482 of the Vance County Registry (“the Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has determined that the Property is in violation of the 
Minimum Housing Ordinance and the Abandoned Structures Ordinance of the City of 
Henderson, Chapters 21 and 21A, respectively, of the City Code, and has ordered the Owners of 
the Property to vacate and close the Property and repair or demolish the Property to bring it into 
compliance with the respective City Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners are in the process of obtaining methods for the improvement of 
the Property and have requested the City to stay the enforcement of proceedings under the 
Minimum Housing Code or Abandoned Structure Ordinance to facilitate the rehabilitation of the 
Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners hereby commit to rehabilitating the above property so that it 
will fully comply with the applicable City Code provisions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is willing to agree to stay enforcement of demolition proceedings 
under the City Codes subject to the Owners’ Agreement to proceed with the rehabilitation of the 
Property in accordance with the Agreement attached. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual terms and 
conditions herein set forth the parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Owners agree to take all action necessary to commence the rehabilitation of the 
Property within forty (40) days from the date of this agreement. After commencement 
of the work the Owners agree to proceed in a timely and expeditious manner to bring 

Resolution 12-78 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 6 of 13 

 

the Property into substantial compliance with the City’s Codes by December 10, 
2012, in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
a. Maintain the lawns and remove any trash or debris two (2) times within a month 

hereafter, and 
 

b. Re-secure all windows and doors, preventing vagrants from entering the structures, 
with boards that are cut to fit the opening and paint all boards within the first 30 
days hereafter, and 

 
c. Remove burnt sheds behind the properties within the first forty-five (45) days 

hereafter, and 
 

d. Within the first forty (40) days, the Owners shall repair/replace all defective existing 
foundation (piers, sills, guides), clean and remove any debris and public nuisances 
(trash, overgrowth) on the Property as required (according to Code Compliance 
Department specification) and  

 
e. Within fifty (50) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete repair of all defective roof 

framing, roof sheathing and felt, flashing, boxing, fascias, permanent roof and 
chimney; and 

 
f. Within sixty (60) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to the 

outside windows and doors, siding and/or brick veneer, porches, exterior trim and 
exterior paint (prime); 

 
g. Within seventy (70) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete any required rough-in 

plumbing, rough in wiring, rough-in heating/cooling ductwork 
 

h. Within eighty (80) days hereafter, the Owners shall complete all required repairs to 
the insulation (floors, walls & ceilings) interior walls, floors and ceilings 
(sheetrock/paneling impervious flooring in kitchen and bath room areas), interior 
paint (prime); 

 
i. By December 10, 2012 (ninety (90) after the date of this Agreement), the Owners 

shall complete all required repairs to the bathroom finishes, plumbing (baths and 
kitchen), water heater, interior paint (including fixtures & trim) and exterior paint. 
(Accessory building has no plumbing or electricity.) 

 
The Owners shall obtain all necessary permits for the work and complete the work in 
accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations. 
 

2. So long as the Owners are in compliance with this Agreement, the City agrees to stay 
and forbear from any further enforcement proceedings under the Minimum Housing 
Code and/ Abandoned Structures Ordinance or under that Ordinance 12-61. Upon the 
Owners’ compliance with all of the requirements of the applicable code, the City 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 7 of 13 

 

Manager shall recommend to the City Council that such Ordinance 12-61 be tabled or 
repealed in its entirety. 

 
3. The Owners specifically understand and agree that the failure to meet any of the 

compliance deadlines in the Agreement shall be cause for the City to continue with 
proceedings under the Minimum Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance, as appropriate. In the event that the Owners fail to meet such deadlines, 
and the City thereafter determines that it is desirable to take additional action under 
the City’s Codes, the City agrees to provide written notice of such determination to 
any Owner’s lender (as indicated in the records on file in the Vance County Registry). 
The lender shall have thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice to provide 
written notice to the City of the lender’s intention to commence foreclosure of the 
Property and/or cure the failure. After receipt of such written notice, the City shall 
allow the lender a reasonable time to complete the foreclosure of the Property and/or 
cure the failure prior to the continuance of proceedings under the City’s Codes. 

 
4. In the event the Owners (and any lender) fail to meet any compliance deadlines in this 

Agreement the Owners do hereby agree for herself/himself and her/his successors and 
assigns to accept service of any notices, complaints and orders under the Minimum 
Housing Code and/or Abandoned Structures Ordinance by first-class mail. The 
Owners hereby waive any requirements for service as set forth in G.S. 160A-445 and 
in the Henderson City Code.  Also in such event, the City Council can proceed 
(without further process) with the consideration and/or passage of Ordinance 12-61 
relative to the demolition of the structure located on the above property (after mailing 
notice to the Owners at the Owners’ last known address at least 10 days before the 
Ordinance is again to be considered by the City Council). 

 
5. Owners further agree and hereby permit the Code Compliance Officer/Housing 

Inspectors for the City of Henderson to enter upon the Property at reasonable times 
for the purposes of inspecting the work and condition of the Property until such time 
as the Property is brought into compliance with all City Codes and Ordinances. 

 
6. The Owners agree that the promises and assurances made by the City in this 

agreement constitute good and sufficient consideration for the promises made by 
Owners in this Agreement. 

 
7. The Owners’ obligations shall run with the land and impose a continuing obligation 

on the holder of the title of the Property to comply with the terms and conditions of 
all of the City’s Codes of Ordinances. 

 
8. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, trustees or successors and assigns of 

the parties. 
 
9. It is agreed that the City’s failure to insist on the strict performance of any provisions 

of this agreement or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 8 of 13 

 

acceptance of any performance during such breach, shall not constitute a waiver of 
any rights under this agreement. 

 
10. This agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any governmental authority or right of 

the City. 
 
11. In the event this Agreement is not signed by both Owners, duly notarized, and 

returned to the City Manager of the City of Henderson by September 25, 2012, then 
this Agreement shall be null and void ab initio. 

 
12. This agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Owners have caused this agreement to be duly 
executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
      By: _______________________________ (SEAL) 
             Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
 
      By:________________________________(SEAL) 
                                                                              Corey K. Williams, Code Administrator 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Ray Griffin, City 
Manager of the City of Henderson, and Corey K. Williams, Code Administrator for the City of 
Henderson, a municipal corporation, personally appeared before me this day, acknowledging to me that 
they each voluntarily signed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said municipal corporation for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity indicated. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires:________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 We each understand and consent to the terms of this Agreement: 
 
                 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 9 of 13 

 

      OWNERS 
         
      ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Luis Medina 
 
     
            ________________________________ (SEAL) 
      Veronica Medina  
                
             
STATE OF ________________ 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

 
I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Luis Medina and 

wife, Veronica Medina, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 
the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.  Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal 
this ___ day of  ___________________, 2012. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
       ______________________________(SEAL) 
        
 
 
 
 
Notary Public 
My Commission Expires:________________ 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 10 of 13 

 

ORDINANCE 12-61 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR 
TO REMOVE OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED 
AS HAZARDOUS TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE 
AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE 

SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 

is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation; 

 
NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 
 

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; 

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of 
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the 
following address: 

318 Rowland Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0073 04002 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443. 
 

 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 11 of 13 

 

Section 3. Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 
Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 
surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. 160A-446(6). 
 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-58, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by 
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was ** on this the **  day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 12 of 13 

 

Attachment 3 
 
 



CAF 12-A-109:  10 September 2012 
Page 13 of 13 

 

 





 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

28 August 2012 
 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-93  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-64, Approving the Submission of the 
Application for an Urban Progress Zone Designation. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3:  Enhanced Economic Development- To Create New Jobs and Investment, Expand the Tax 

Base and Increase the Per Capita Income. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-64, Approving the Submission of the Application for an Urban Progress 

Zone Designation 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
The City of Henderson has the opportunity to apply for an Urban Progress Zone designation.  In 2006 the 
NC General Assembly passed legislation that created a new tax credit program called Article 3J Credits. 
There are three types of tax credits provided under this program.  1) Credits for creating jobs, 2) Credits 
for investing in business property, and 3) Credits for investments in real property for only tier 1 counties.  
Vance County is a tier 1 county.  These credits may be combined to offset up to 50% of the taxpayer’s 
state income and franchise taxes.  Municipalities with a population of at least 10,000 have the ability to 
define qualifying areas of poverty as Urban Progress Zones. We are applying to create zones in three 
census tracts: 960500, 960700 and 960900 within the City.     
 
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 12-64 
2. Article 3J Credit Summary 
3. Urban Progress Zone Map 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting



 2

RESOLUTION 12-64 
A RESOLUTION  

APPROVING DESIGNATION OF  
THE NORTH CAROLINA URBAN PROGRESS ZONE 

 
WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 

2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals and 12 
Core Values; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows:  KSO 3, Enhanced Economic 

Development—To create new jobs and investment, expand the tax base and increase the per 
capita income; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Henderson City Council recognizes the need to improve the economic viability 

of the City of Henderson; and 
 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Commerce created Urban Progress Zones to 

encourage and enhance economic development within areas of high poverty; and 
 
WHEREAS, qualifying enterprises and activities receive significant tax credits for job creation 

and investment in machinery and equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Commerce established criteria for the creation of 

an Urban Progress Zone including a minimum of 20% population below the poverty level 
and minimum population requirements for the census tract and municipality; and 

   
WHEREAS, city and county staff has researched the census tract information to determine 

eligibility under the Urban Progress Zone criteria and found that Census Tracts 960500, 
960700, and 960900 meet the criteria 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that they 

designate the above described Census Tract 960500, 960700, and 960900 as a North 
Carolina Urban Progress Zone and directs the Planning Director to make application, 
being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, to the North Carolina 
Department of Commerce.  

 
The foregoing Resolution, 12-64, introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this the ** day of  ** 2012, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was ** 
by the following votes: YES.  NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .  ABSENT:  . 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
     
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  
Approved to Legal Form: 
___________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.. 



 3

 
 

Resolution 12-64 
Attachment A 



 4

 



 5

CAF 12-93 
Attachment #2



 6

 

CAF 12-93 
Attachment #3 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 1 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
28 August 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 12-A-88 

Consideration Approval of Resolution 12-71, Authorizing the Execution of a 
Contract with Environmental Engineering & Technology (EE&T) for Engineering 
/Inspection Services in Conjunction with a State Revolving Fund Loan for the High 
Service Pump Replacement and New Warren County Meter Vault for the Regional 
Water System. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO-5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

System. 
 

 KSO-8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal 
Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and 
Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Resolution 12-71, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with Environmental 

Engineering & Technology (EE&T) for Engineering /Inspection Services in Conjunction 
with a State Revolving Fund Loan for the High Service Pump Replacement and New Warren 
County Meter Vault for the Regional Water System. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On 23 July 2012 the City Council approved Resolution 12-59, accepting the 0% interest loan 
from the NC Drinking Water State Revolving Fund to replace an existing 400Hp Finished water 
pump with a new 1000Hp Finished water pump in order to ensure redundancy and efficiency of 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item:  
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 2 of 16 

 

pumping capacity. The plans and specifications have been updated by EE&T. It was originally 
part of the 20 MGD project. This contract for services related to the high service pump 
replacement will include preparation of the bid documents, bidding the project and oversight 
during the construction of the project in accordance with the state regulations. 

 

The proposal was submitted and reviewed by the staff relative to the number of hours proposed 
to perform this work and then resubmitted as attached. $53,268 was budgeted in the grant/loan 
application to perform this work. Their original proposal to perform this work was $44,871.  
After negotiations with EE&T on the scope of work to be performed, the fee was reduced to 
$37,100 for the high service pump work.  

  

Also included is a contract for the work associated with the Warren County Meter Vault 
relocation. The Warren County Water Meter Relocation Project has been delayed due to 
problems with obtaining the property needed outside of the NCDOT right of way. The City 
Attorney has advised that we can proceed with the project based on previous negotiation and 
acceptance of the price for the easement. The work to be done by EE&T will be assisting us with 
the bid documents and bid phase as necessary. The informal bidding process will be used. 
Inspections and construction administration will be handled by the Engineering Department.  
The total cost for this service by EE&T is $3,000. 

 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 12-71  
2. Resolution 12-59             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 3 of 16 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 12-71 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT WITH 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING AND TECHNOLOGY (EE&T) FOR  

ENGINEERING/INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE KLRW HIGH SPEED PUMP 
REPLACEMENT AND THE WARREN COUTNY METER VAULT REPLACEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 

(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved the acceptance of the loan for the High Service Pump 

Replacement via Resolution 12-59 on 23 July 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has previously approved the funding for the Warren County Meter 

Vault Relocation Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, EE&T prepared the plans for the High Service Pump Replacement and Warren 

County Meter Vault Relocation; and  
 
WHEREAS, additional services are needed during the bidding and construction of the projects. 
  
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE the execution of the contract with EE&T for engineering 
services related to the High Service Pump Replacement and New Warren County Meter 
Vault relocation project in the amount of $40,100, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A and Attachment B, respectively to this resolution. 

  
The foregoing Resolution 12-71, introduced by Councilmember ******** and seconded by 
Councilmember ********* on this the *** day of **** 2012, and having been submitted to a 
roll call vote, was ********** by the following votes: YES:    NO:   ABSTAIN:    ABSENT:   
          

__________________________________  
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  
Approved to Legal Form: 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** CAF 12-A-88)



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 4 of 16 

 

 
AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
CITY OF HENDERSON, NORTH CAROLINA 

AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING & TECHNOLOGY, INC. 

FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 
 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT made as of   August 13,  2012  between  City of Henderson, North 

Carolina  (“OWNER”) and  Environmental Engineering & Technology, Inc.  

(“ENGINEER”). 

OWNER and ENGINEER in consideration of their mutual covenants herein agree in respect of 
the performance or furnishing of professional engineering services by ENGINEER with respect 
to the Project and the payment for those services by OWNER as set forth below.  Execution of 
this Agreement by ENGINEER and OWNER constitutes OWNER’s written authorization to 
ENGINEER to proceed on the date first above written.  This Agreement will become effective 
on the date first above written. 
 
SECTION 1—BASIC SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
The following scope items are to be completed by the ENGINEER for the High Service Pump 
Replacement Project.  These scope items, as detailed in Section 2 below, may be modified or 
added to as amended by letter to this Agreement agreed to by the OWNER and ENGINEER. 
 

1. Complete the required design documents for advertising and bidding the project.  
2. Provide advertising and bid assistance to the Owner.  
3. Provide construction administration (CA) services for the duration of the project.  
4. For Items 1, 2, and 3 above, provide assistance to the Owner with the DBE Program 

requirements for the project.  
 
SECTION 2—DEFINITION OF SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
2.1. Prepare Bid-Ready Design Documents 
 
2.1.1. Utilizing the Plans and Specifications prepared by ENGINEER and recently approved by 
the State, the ENGINEER will prepare the necessary front end documents, including the Bid 
Form, other necessary Division 1 specifications, and State and Federal DBE forms, in order to 
complete the Design Documents and make “bid ready”.   
 
2.1.2. ENGINEER will provide the bid ready documents to the OWNER for review and 
submission to the State for final approval. 
 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 5 of 16 

 

2.1.3. ENGINEER will prepare a construction cost estimate for the proposed work. 
 
2.1.4. ENGINEER will conduct one (1) site visit at the Plant to review the Design Documents, 
and, if necessary, discuss with OWNER.  ENGINEER will schedule with OWNER.  
 
2.1.5. ENGINEER will provide the OWNER with four (4) hard copies of the bid-ready Design 
Documents and a CD/DVD with electronic drawing files (PDF).  
 
The duties and responsibilities of ENGINEER during the Prepare Bid-Ready Design Documents 
Phase as set forth in this paragraph 2.1 are as indicated in Section 1 or as amended thereto. 
 
2.2. Advertising and Bidding Phase 
 
2.2.1. ENGINEER will assist the OWNER with advertising for and obtaining bids for the 
Project. 
 
2.2.2. In addition to the required advertising and solicitation resources per the DBE program 
guidelines, the OWNER, with assistance as needed from ENGINEER, will advertise in local and 
regional media outlets. ENGINEER will notify regional Plans Rooms. ENGINEER will 
distribute electronic files of the Design Documents on a CD/DVD, which will be requested by 
Contractors and Vendors. 
 
2.2.3. ENGINEER will prepare bid tabulation sheets and assist the OWNER with evaluating the 
bids received, and can assist with preparing required documents for compliance with DBE 
guidelines.  ENGINEER will provide the OWNER with a written recommendation of award. 
 
2.2.4. If necessary, ENGINEER will prepare and distribute addenda required prior to the 
submission of bids. 
 
2.2.5. If required or requested, ENGINEER is prepared to attend a pre-bid meeting for the 
Project.  ENGINEER would prepare and distribute an agenda and meeting minutes. 
 
2.2.6. ENGINEER will prepare and assist as needed for any documentation or correspondence 
required for bidding. 
 
2.2.7. ENGINEER will provide assistance during the Advertising and Bidding Phase in order to 
comply with the DBE Program requirements, which will primarily consist of, but not limited to, 
preparing the required documentation and correspondence to DBE Program officials for Owner 
review and processing. 
 
2.2.8 ENGINEER will prepare the Contract and required Bonds for signing upon award of bid.  
 
The duties and responsibilities of ENGINEER during the Advertising and Bidding Phase as set 
forth in this paragraph 2.2 are as indicated in Section 1 or as amended thereto. 
 
 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 6 of 16 

 

2.3. Construction Administration Phase 
 
2.3.1. ENGINEER will furnish the OWNER with four (4) hard copies of the Conformed Design 
Documents, and up to five (5) hard copies to the Contractor. 
 
2.3.2. EE&T will consult with and advise the Owner during construction when requested.  
 
2.3.3. ENGINEER will review required submittals provided by the Contractors and Vendors for 
compliance with the Contract Documents. ENGINEER will prepare responses to the submittals 
provided and maintain a tracking spreadsheet for submittals. 
 
2.3.4. ENGINEER will review requests for information (RFI) submitted by the Contractor.  
ENGINEER will prepare responses to the RFI provided and maintain a tracking spreadsheet for 
RFI. 
 
2.3.5. ENGINEER will review change orders submitted by the Contractor or requested by the 
OWNER.  ENGINEER will prepare the documentation required for processing, and maintain a 
tracking spreadsheet for change orders. 
 
2.3.6. Upon project completion, ENGINEER will consolidate as-built drawings and information 
to prepare Record Drawings. Four (4) hard copies and electronic files (PDF) of the Record 
Drawings will be furnished to the OWNER on a CD/DVD. 
 
2.3.7. ENGINEER will assist as required for any project documents required for State records. 
 
2.3.8. ENGINEER will provide assistance during the Construction Administration Phase in 
order to comply with the DBE Program requirements, which will primarily consist of, but not 
limited to, preparing the required documentation and correspondence to DBE Program officials 
for OWNER review and processing. 
 
2.3.9. Following notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the entire work ready for its 
intended use, ENGINEER and OWNER, accompanied by Contractor, shall conduct an 
inspection to determine if the work is substantially complete.  If after considering any objections 
of OWNER, ENGINEER considers the work substantially complete, ENGINEER shall deliver a 
certificate of Substantial Completion to OWNER and Contractor. 
 
2.3.10. ENGINEER shall conduct a final inspection to determine if the completed work of 
Contractor is acceptable so that ENGINEER may recommend, in writing, final payment to 
Contractor.  Accompanying the recommendation for final payment, ENGINEER shall also 
provide a notice that the work is acceptable  to the best of ENGINEER’s knowledge, information 
and belief and based on the extent of the services performed and furnished by ENGINEER under 
this Agreement. 
 
2.3.11 Limitation of Responsibilities.  ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or 
omissions of any Contractor, or of any subcontractor, any supplier, or of any other person or 
organization performing or furnishing any of the work.  ENGINEER shall not be responsible for 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 7 of 16 

 

Contractor’s failure to perform or furnish the work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
Excepted from the above limitations are matters covered in Section 6.1 hereof.  
 
2.3.12. Duration of Construction Phase.  The Construction Phase will commence with the 
execution of the construction contract for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon 
written recommendation by ENGINEER of final payment.   
 
2.3.13. ENGINEER will be at the Plant for up to five (5) site visits. This includes a site visit for 
the project kickoff meeting, a site visit for final  inspection, and up to three (3) additional site 
visits for period inspection of the progress of work. 
 
The duties and responsibilities of ENGINEER during the Construction Phase as set forth in this 
paragraph 2.3 are as indicated in Section 1 or as amended thereto. 
 
SECTION 3—PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
The fee for the services described herein shall not exceed $37,100.00.  
 
Additional site visits requested and approved by the OWNER beyond those included with above 
scope of work shall be an additional $420.00 per visit.  
 
Other task items requested and approved by the OWNER will be billed on a time and material 
basis or a maximum fee amount will be negotiated and appended hereto at time of authorization 
to proceed. 
 
SECTION 4—TERMINATION 
 
The OWNER, by written notice to the ENGINEER, may suspend or terminate the services to be 
performed by the ENGINEER under this Contract.  In the event of termination, ENGINEER will 
be paid for work done up to the date of termination, and ENGINEER will make available to the 
OWNER all data, design drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and such other 
information and materials as may have been accumulated or created by the ENGINEER 
performing this contract. 
 
SECTION 5—REUSE OF DOCUMENTS 
 
All documents including Drawings and Specifications provided or furnished by ENGINEER (or 
ENGINEER’s Consultants) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect of 
the Project, and ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s Consultants, as appropriate, shall retain an 
ownership and property interest therein (including the right of reuse by and at the discretion of 
ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s Consultants, as appropriate) whether or not the Project is 
completed.  OWNER may make and retain copies for information and reference in connection 
with the use and occupancy of the Project by OWNER and others; however, such documents are 
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by OWNER or others on extensions of the 
Project or on any other project.  Any such reuse without written verification or adaptation by 
ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s Consultants, as appropriate, for the specific purpose intended 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 8 of 16 

 

will be at OWNER’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER, or to 
ENGINEER’s Consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’ 
fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle 
ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by OWNER and ENGINEER. 
 
SECTION 6—ALLOCATION OF RISKS-INDEMNIFICATION 
 
6.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless 
OWNER, OWNER’s officers, directors, partners, employees and agents from and against any 
and all claims, costs, losses and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of ENGINEER’S 
services under this Agreement. 
 
6.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless 
ENGINEER, ENGINEER’s officers, directors, partners, employees and agents and 
ENGINEER’s Consultants from and against any and all claims, costs, losses and damages 
(including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other 
professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the 
negligent acts or omissions of OWNER or OWNER’s officers, directors, partners, employees, 
agents and OWNER’s consultants with respect to this agreement or the project. 
 
6.3 In addition to the indemnity provided under paragraph 6.2 of this Agreement, and to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and its 
officers, directors, partners, employees, and agents and ENGINEER’s Consultants from and 
against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of or relating to the presence, discharge, release, 
or escape of Asbestos, PCBs, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material, at, on, 
under or from the Project Site. 
 
SECTION 7—INSURANCE 
 
ENGINEER shall procure and maintain insurance for protection from claims under workers’ 
compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily injury including personal injury, 
sickness or disease or death of any and all employees or of any person other than such 
employees, and from claims or damages because of injury to or destruction of property including 
loss of use resulting therefrom.  ENGINEER shall list OWNER as an additional insured on 
ENGINEER’s general liability insurance policy. 
 
ENGINEER shall also procure and maintain professional liability insurance for protection from 
claims arising out of performance of professional services caused by a negligent error, omission 
or act for which the insured is legally liable; such professional liability insurance will provide for 
coverage in an amount of not less than $2,000,000.  Certificates indicating that such insurance is 
in effect will be delivered to OWNER. 
 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 9 of 16 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on their respective 
behalves by their duly authorized respective officers. 
 
 
CITY OF HENDERSON    APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
 
By __________________________________ __________________________________ 
      James D. O’Geary    John H. Zollicoffer, Jr. 
 Mayor      City Attorney for the City of Henderson 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING  This instrument has been preaudited in the 
         & TECHNOLOGY, INC.   manner required by the Local Government 
       Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
By __________________________________ __________________________________ 
     David A. Cornwell, Ph.D., P.E., BCEE  Katherine C. Brafford 
     President      City of Henderson    
       Finance Director 
 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 10 of 16 

 

 
AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
CITY OF HENDERSON, NORTH CAROLINA 

AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING & TECHNOLOGY, INC. 

FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT made as of   August 13,  2012  between  City of Henderson, North 

Carolina  (“OWNER”) and  Environmental Engineering & Technology, Inc.  

(“ENGINEER”). 

OWNER and ENGINEER in consideration of their mutual covenants herein agree in respect of 
the performance or furnishing of professional engineering services by ENGINEER with respect 
to the Project and the payment for those services by OWNER as set forth below.  Execution of 
this Agreement by ENGINEER and OWNER constitutes OWNER’s written authorization to 
ENGINEER to proceed on the date first above written.  This Agreement will become effective 
on the date first above written. 
 
SECTION 1—BASIC SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
The following scope items are to be completed by the ENGINEER for the Warren County Water 
Meter Vault Project.  These scope items, as detailed in Section 2 below, may be modified or 
added to as amended by letter to this Agreement agreed to by the OWNER and ENGINEER. 
 

1. Complete the required design documents for advertising and bidding the project.   
 
SECTION 2—DEFINITION OF SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
2.1. Prepare Bid-Ready Design Documents 
 
2.1.1. Utilizing the Plans and Specifications prepared by ENGINEER and recently approved by 
the State, the ENGINEER will prepare the necessary front end documents, including the Bid 
Form, other necessary Division 1 specifications, and State and Federal DBE forms, in order to 
complete the Design Documents and make “bid ready”.   
 
2.1.2. ENGINEER will provide the bid ready documents to the OWNER for final review and 
approval. 
 
2.1.3. ENGINEER will prepare a construction cost estimate for the proposed work. 
 
2.1.4. Upon approval by OWNER, ENGINEER will provide the OWNER with four (4) hard 
copies of the bid-ready Design Documents and a CD/DVD with electronic drawing files (PDF).  
The duties and responsibilities of ENGINEER during the Prepare Bid-Ready Design Documents 
Phase as set forth in this paragraph 2.1 are as indicated in Section 1 or as amended thereto. 

Resolution 12-71 
Attachment B 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 3—PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
The fee for the services described herein shall not exceed $3,000.00.  
 
Other task items requested and approved by the OWNER will be billed on a time and material 
basis or a maximum fee amount will be negotiated and appended hereto at time of authorization 
to proceed. 
 
SECTION 4—TERMINATION 
 
The OWNER, by written notice to the ENGINEER, may suspend or terminate the services to be 
performed by the ENGINEER under this Contract.  In the event of termination, ENGINEER will 
be paid for work done up to the date of termination, and ENGINEER will make available to the 
OWNER all data, design drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and such other 
information and materials as may have been accumulated or created by the ENGINEER 
performing this contract. 
 
SECTION 5—REUSE OF DOCUMENTS 
 
All documents including Drawings and Specifications provided or furnished by ENGINEER (or 
ENGINEER’s Consultants) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect of 
the Project, and ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s Consultants, as appropriate, shall retain an 
ownership and property interest therein (including the right of reuse by and at the discretion of 
ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s Consultants, as appropriate) whether or not the Project is 
completed.  OWNER may make and retain copies for information and reference in connection 
with the use and occupancy of the Project by OWNER and others; however, such documents are 
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by OWNER or others on extensions of the 
Project or on any other project.  Any such reuse without written verification or adaptation by 
ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s Consultants, as appropriate, for the specific purpose intended 
will be at OWNER’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER, or to 
ENGINEER’s Consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’ 
fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle 
ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by OWNER and ENGINEER. 
 
SECTION 6—ALLOCATION OF RISKS-INDEMNIFICATION 
 
6.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless 
OWNER, OWNER’s officers, directors, partners, employees and agents from and against any 
and all claims, costs, losses and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of ENGINEER’S 
services under this Agreement. 
6.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless 
ENGINEER, ENGINEER’s officers, directors, partners, employees and agents and 
ENGINEER’s Consultants from and against any and all claims, costs, losses and damages 
(including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 12 of 16 

 

professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the 
negligent acts or omissions of OWNER or OWNER’s officers, directors, partners, employees, 
agents and OWNER’s consultants with respect to this agreement or the project. 
 
6.3 In addition to the indemnity provided under paragraph 6.2 of this Agreement, and to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and its 
officers, directors, partners, employees, and agents and ENGINEER’s Consultants from and 
against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of or relating to the presence, discharge, release, 
or escape of Asbestos, PCBs, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material, at, on, 
under or from the Project Site. 
 
SECTION 7—INSURANCE 
 
ENGINEER shall procure and maintain insurance for protection from claims under workers’ 
compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily injury including personal injury, 
sickness or disease or death of any and all employees or of any person other than such 
employees, and from claims or damages because of injury to or destruction of property including 
loss of use resulting therefrom.  ENGINEER shall list OWNER as an additional insured on 
ENGINEER’s general liability insurance policy. 
 
ENGINEER shall also procure and maintain professional liability insurance for protection from 
claims arising out of performance of professional services caused by a negligent error, omission 
or act for which the insured is legally liable; such professional liability insurance will provide for 
coverage in an amount of not less than $2,000,000.  Certificates indicating that such insurance is 
in effect will be delivered to OWNER. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on their respective 
behalves by their duly authorized respective officers. 
 
CITY OF HENDERSON    APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
By __________________________________ __________________________________ 
      James D. O’Geary    John H. Zollicoffer, Jr. 
 Mayor      City Attorney  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING  This instrument has been pre-audited in the 
         & TECHNOLOGY, INC.   manner required by the Local Government 
       Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
By __________________________________ __________________________________ 
     David A. Cornwell, Ph.D., P.E., BCEE  Katherine C. Brafford 
     President                                  City Finance Director 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 13 of 16 

 

RESOLUTION  12-59 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF A LOAN FROM THE NC DRINKING WATER STATE 
REVOLVING FUND FOR REPLACEMENT OF HIGH SPEED PUMP AT KERR LAKE 

REGIONAL WATER PLANT 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer of acceptance of a loan for a water system project 

(project number WIF-1692); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City deems it in the best interest to complete this work in order to provide 

reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems, and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the loan is $1,129,000 for twenty years with a .00% interest rate; 

and; 
 

WHEREAS,  the finished water pump, controls, valves and piping for redundancy would be for 
funding at the Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant and consistent with future 
construction of the 20 MGD project. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. That the City of Henderson (Applicant) will arrange financing for all remaining 
costs of the project. 
 

2. That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will 
provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of 
the system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

 
3. That the City Council (governing body) of the Applicant agrees to include in the 

loan agreement a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the 
City of Henderson to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the 
City of Henderson any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local 
government unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to 
the State as a repayment of the loan. 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 14 of 16 

 

 
4. That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the 

project on completion of construction thereof. 
 
5. That  Mayor James D. O’Geary, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, 

is hereby authorized to execute the acceptance of the loan, being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A of this Resolution. 

 
6. That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request 
in connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as 
contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in 
connection with the application. 

 
7. That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 

Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-59 introduced by Council Member Kearney and seconded by 
Council Member Rainey on this the 23rd day of July 2012, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.   ABSENT:  None. 
 
 
      __________________________________  
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference: Minute Book 42, p. 532. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 15 of 16 

 

________________________   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 12-59, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 23 July 2012 (See Minute Book 42, p. 532.).  
This Resolution is recorded in Resolution  Book # 3, pp. 13. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 24th day of  July 2012. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 12-A-88: 10 September 2012 
Page 16 of 16 

 

 

 



CAF 12-18: 10 September 2012 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
28 August 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-18  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-05, Consideration of Declaring the Old 
First National Bank Building on Garnett Street as Surplus Property and 
Authorizing the Solicitation of Proposals from Realtors to Market and Sell said 
Building 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
KSO 5:  Economic Development; Action Plan 3-5: Redevelop Downtown 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-05, Consideration of Declaring the Old First National Bank 

Building on Garnett Street as Surplus Property and Authorizing the Solicitation of Proposals 
from Realtors to Market and Sell said Building 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The Land Planning Committee met on 22 August to discuss the disposition of the old bank 
building.  It continues to be vacant and in a deteriorated condition.  The Committee unanimously 
recommends Council consider declaring the property surplus and authorizing the City Manager 
to solicit proposals from realtors for its marketing and sale. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-05 
2. Land Planning Committee Minutes, 22 Aug 12 Meeting 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting  
 



CAF 12-18: 10 September 2012 
Page 2 of 4 

 

R E S O L U T I O N    12-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL 
DECLARING THE OLD FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING ON 

GARNETT STREET AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING 
THE SOLICITATION OF PROPOSALS FROM REALTORS TO MARKET 

AND SELL SAID BUILDING 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 
Goals and 12 Core Values; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 3: 

Economic Development; Action Plan 3-5: Redevelop Downtown; and 
 
WHEREAS, the old First National Bank building is owned by the City of Henderson and plans 

to utilize for a proposed rail passenger station has not materialized; the building is vacant 
and in a deteriorated condition; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Land Planning Committee has recommended to City Council to declare the 

property surplus and to have said property professionally marketed and ultimately sold, 
including any public-private partnerships that may be advantageous to both the City and 
prospective developer. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

declare the old First National Bank Building located at 213 South Garnett Street to be 
surplus and available for disposition and/or sale as deemed appropriate by the City 
Council; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to solicit proposals from 

realtors and brokers to market and sale the property, with said marketing and sale to be 
flexible to consider viable public-private partnerships that the Council may find 
advantageous to both the City and prospective developer. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Henderson will share any net profits from the 

sale of the building and property with the County of Vance in accordance with agreement 
already in place between the City and County that provided for the transfer of the 
County’s ownership interest in the property to the City via Resolution 11-16 approved by 
City Council on 10 January 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-18: 10 September 2012 
Page 3 of 4 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-05, introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this the 10th day of September 2012, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, 
was *** by the following votes: YES: .  NO: .  ABSTAIN: . None.   :  . 
 
             
     __________________________________   
     James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:   Minute Book 42, p..) 
  Resolution 11-16) 



CAF 12-18: 10 September 2012 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

CAF 12-18 
Attachment #2 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 August  2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-110 
 Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-62, Demolition of 587 Beckford Drive. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition and expansion 

of the Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 

rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-62, Demolition of 587 Beckford Drive. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The structure located at 587 Beckford Drive is owned by Portia Denise Steed and husband David 
Steed.  The structure meets the requirements of section 21A (Abandoned Structure) of City 
Code.  The proper enforcement procedures have been followed in accordance with section 21A 
and North Carolina General Statutes §160A-429,443 and 445.  City Attorney John Zollicoffer 
reviewed the enforcement process and there are no foreseen problems at this time.  In order to 
proceed with the enforcement process, an Ordinance of Demolition needs to be approved by the 
City Council. 

 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-62 
2. Pictures of Structures 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting 



ORDINANCE 12-62 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE 
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE 
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

Portia Denise Steed and husband David Steed 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on April 20, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation. 

 
NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 
 

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; 

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of 
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the 
following address: 

587 Beckford Drive / Deed Book 704 Page 711 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0101 02018 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 20th day of April 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443. 

 
Section 3.  Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 

Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 
surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 



surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. 160A-446(6). 
 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-62, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by 
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was ** on this the ** day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-110 
Attachment 2 
587 Beckford  

 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 August 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-111 
 Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-63, Demolition of 707 Marshall Street. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition and expansion 

of the Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 

rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-63, Demolition of 707 Marshall Street. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The structure located at 707 Marshall Street is owned by Roberta Kingsberry Crudup, Heirs.  
Photographs below indicate signs of frequent use of vagrants, conditions creating fire hazards 
and deterioration.  The structure meets the requirements of section 21A (Abandoned Structure) 
of City Code.  The proper enforcement procedures have been followed in accordance with 
section 21A and North Carolina General Statutes §160A-429,443 and 445.  City Attorney John 
Zollicoffer reviewed the enforcement process and there are no foreseen problems at this time.  In 
order to proceed with the enforcement process, an Ordinance of Demolition needs to be 
approved by the City Council. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-63 
2. Pictures of Structures 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting 



ORDINANCE 12-63 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE 
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE 
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

Roberta Kingsberry Crudup, Heirs 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on April 19, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation. 

 
NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 
 

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; 

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of 
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the 
following address: 

 
707 Marshall Street / Deed Book 481 Page 341 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0091 03007 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 19th day of April 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443. 

 
Section 3.  Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 

Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 



surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. 160A-446(6). 
 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-63, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by 
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was ** on this the **  day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 
  
 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CAF 12-111 



Attachment 2 
707 Marshall Street 

 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 August 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-112 
 Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-64, Demolition of 710 Marshall Street. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition and expansion 

of the Housing Stock. 
o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 

rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-64, Demolition of 710 Marshall Street. 
 
Executive Summary 
  
The structure located at 710 Marshall Street is owned by American General Financial Service 
Inc.  The structure meets the requirements of section 21A (Abandoned Structure) of City Code.  
The proper enforcement procedures have been followed in accordance with section 21A and 
North Carolina General Statutes §160A-429,443 and 445.  City Attorney John Zollicoffer 
reviewed the enforcement process and there are no foreseen problems at this time.  In order to 
proceed with the enforcement process, an Ordinance of Demolition needs to be approved by the 
City Council. 

 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-64 
2. Pictures of Structures 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  10 Sept 12 Regular Meeting 



ORDINANCE 12-64 
 

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE 
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE 
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED. 

 
 WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or 

unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):  

American General Financial Service Inc. 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein 
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City 
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned 
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the 

structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with 
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on April 23, 
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code 

Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for 
human habitation. 

 
NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that: 
 

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard 
containing the legend; 

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of this 

building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the 
following address: 

710 Marshall Street / Deed Book 1152 Page 0315 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance 
County Tax Parcel 0091 03008 in the City of Henderson, N.C. 

 
Section 2.  The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to 

remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners 
thereof dated the 23rd day of April 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443. 

 
Section 3.  Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code 

Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any 
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or 
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a 



surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the 
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by 
G.S. 160A-446(6). 
 

Section 4.  The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith 
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the 
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and 
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter 
160A. 
 
 Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the 
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to 
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  
 
 Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-64, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by 
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was ** on this the **  day of ----------- 2012: YES:  . NO:.    ABSENT:  . ABSTAIN:  . 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 12-112 
Attachment 2 
710 Marshall  

 
 

 

 
  

 













  

                   

                Last Updated: 9/7/2012 9:18 AM 

Date Time Event Location 

Sept 11th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Sept 13th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission 
Aycock Recreation Center 

Sept 20th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Sept 24th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

Sept 28th  10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911  
Advisory Board Meeting 

E 911 Operation Center 

Oct 1st 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Oct 2nd  3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Oct 8th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting 
City Hall Large Conference 

Room 

Oct 8th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Oct 9th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Oct 11th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission 
Aycock Recreation Center 

Oct 18th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Oct 22nd Cancelled 
City Council Meeting 

CANCELLED 
CANCELLED DUE TO 
NCLM CONFERENCE 

Nov 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Nov 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Nov 8th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission 
Aycock Recreation Center 

Nov 12th 5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees 
H. Leslie Perry Memorial  

Library Board Room 

Nov 12th 
 

 

Happy Veterans Day    

Nov 13th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Nov 15th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Nov 22nd 
& 

Nov 23rd  

CITY HALL CLOSED 
 Thursday the 22nd  & Friday the 23rd 

HAPPY THANKSGIVING 

Nov 26th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

Nov 30th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911  
Advisory Board Meeting 

E 911 Operation Center 

Meetings and Events Calendar 

City Council Meeting 
Cancelled

City Hall Closed 
Veterans Day
































	#29 RM 10 September 2012
	#27 Team Building Retreat
	#28 27 Aug Short Reg
	#29 27 August Work session
	CAF 12-114 Budget Amendment #11(Rec Dept) O 12-65
	CAF 12-116 bud ordinance amendment #10 to FY13 Budget re $140,000 tap fee from Vance Co for Phases 2A & 2B
	CAF 12-121 resolution 12-79 disposition of three tracts of proprty to vance county
	CAF 12-A-106   Demolition 301 Charles R 12-75 ORD 12-58
	CAF 12-A-107  Demolition 309 Charles   R 12-76 ORD 12-59
	CAF 12-A-108 Demolition 315 Charles  R 12-77  Ordinance 12-60
	CAF 12-A-109 Demolition of 318 Rowland R 12-78 ORD 12-61
	CM Memo re FY13 Airport Funding
	CAF 12-93 Urban Progress Zone R 12-63
	CAF 12-A-88   Approval of EET contracts for KLRW High Speed Pump project R 12-71
	CAF 12-18 dispositoin of old bank building on Garnett Street 27 aug 12 council meeting
	CAF 12-110 Ordinance 12-62   Demolition 587 Beckford
	CAF 12-111, Ordinance 12-63 Demolition 707 Marshall
	CAF 12-112, Ord 12-64 Demoition 710 Marshall
	CM Memo re Surplus Property 10 Sept 12 Meeting
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	August 2012
	#7  2012 Report July 21 - Aug 20

